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NOTICE

TO THE MEMBERS

Noice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeing (AGM) of the Members of Cheviot Company Limited will be held 
at The Sitaram Seksaria Auditorium of Bharaiya Bhasha Parishad, 36A, Shakespeare Sarani, 4th Floor, Kolkata-700 017 on 
Thursday, the 13th August, 2015 at 11 a.m. to transact the following business :

Ordinary Business :

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited inancial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2015 
and the reports of the Board of directors and auditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend for the inancial year ended 31st March, 2015.

3. To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Malai Kanoria (holding DIN 00253241), who reires by rotaion and, being 
eligible, ofers herself for re-appointment.

4. To raify the appointment of M/s Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Registraion no. 302023E), as statutory 
auditors of the Company, as approved by members at the annual general meeing of the Company held on 8th August, 
2014 from the conclusion of this annual general meeing ill the conclusion of the next annual general meeing on a 
remuneraion to be mutually agreed upon with the Board of directors for the inancial year 2015-2016.

Special Business :

5. To consider and if thought it, to pass the following resoluions as an Ordinary Resoluion :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Secions 196, 197, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Schedule V thereto and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneraion 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modiicaion(s) or re-enactment thereof for the ime 
being in force), consent of the Company be and is hereby granted to the re-appointment of Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria  
(Mr. Kanoria) (holding DIN 00060259), as the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company for a further period 
of ive years with efect from 1st August, 2015, upon the terms and condiions as to remuneraion and otherwise as 
set out in an agreement (a drat of which signed by the Chairman and Managing Director for ideniicaion was laid on 
the table) to be entered into between the Company and Mr. Kanoria and also given in the statement annexed to this 
noice.

 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of proits in any inancial year during the aforesaid 
period of ive years, the Company will pay to Mr. Kanoria remuneraion by way of salary and perquisites not exceeding 
the ceiling laid down in Secion II of Part II of Schedule V to the Act or any modiicaion(s) or re-enactment thereof as 
minimum remuneraion, subject to such approvals as may be required.”

6. To consider and if thought it, to pass the following resoluion as an Ordinary Resoluion :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Secion 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 14 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modiicaion(s) or re-enactment thereof for  
the ime being in force), the remuneraion of ` 32,500 plus applicable taxes and re-imbursement of out of pocket 
expenses payable to M/s D. Radhakrishnan & Co., Cost Accountants (Registraion No. 000018), who has been 
appointed by the Board of directors of the Company as cost auditor to conduct an audit of the cost accouning records 
maintained by the Company for the year ending 31st March, 2016 be and is hereby raiied.” 

Kolkata, 19th May, 2015 By Order of the Board,
CIN : L65993WB1897PLC001409 CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED

Registered Oice: CS Aditya Banerjee
24, Park Street, Company Secretary 

‘Magma House’, (9th Floor),       

Kolkata- 700 016

Ph: (033) 3291-9624/25/28; Fax: (033) 2249-7269/2217-2488
Email: cheviot@chevjute.com Website: www.groupcheviot.net



CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2014 - 15

3

NOTICE (Contd.)

NOTES :
1. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Register of the Company will remain closed from Saturday,  

8th August, 2015 to Thursday, 13th August, 2015 (both days inclusive).
2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ALSO ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND 

AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. The Proxy in order 
to be efecive, must be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at the Registered Oice of the Company 
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the AGM. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not 
exceeding ity (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In case 
a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voing rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other member.

3. Members/Proxies are requested to bring the atendance slip along with their copy of Annual Report with them at the 
AGM.

4. In case of joint holders atending the AGM, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be enitled 
to vote.

5. Dividend, as recommended by the Board of directors, if declared at the AGM will be paid on 18th August, 2015 to 
those members, whose names shall appear in the Company’s Register of Members at the close of working hours of 
the Company on Friday, 7th August, 2015. In respect of the shares held in electronic form, the dividend will be paid to 
the persons whose names shall appear as beneicial owners as at the end of the business hours on Friday, 7th August, 
2015 as per details furnished by Naional Securiies Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd 
(CDSL). 

6. Dividend which remain unpaid/unclaimed over a period of seven years will have to be transferred by the Company to 
“Investor Educaion and Protecion Fund” of the Central Government under Secions 205A & 205C of the Companies 
Act, 1956. Accordingly, all unpaid/unclaimed amounts in respects of dividends paid by the Company for the inancial 
year ended 31st March, 2007 have been transferred to the said Fund. Unpaid/unclaimed dividend for the inancial 
year ended 31st March, 2008 will become due for transfer during September, 2015. Shareholders are advised to 
encash the unpaid dividend warrants before transfer to the above referred Fund. 

 Pursuant to the provisions of Investor Educaion and Protecion Fund (uploading of informaion regarding unpaid 
and unclaimed amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and 
unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on 8th August, 2014 (date of previous year annual general meeing) on 
the website of the Company (www.groupcheviot.net), as also on the website of Ministry of Corporate Afairs.  

7. Members are hereby informed that Securiies and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has made it mandatory for all the 
listed companies to make cash payments through electronic payment modes to the investors. It is further directed that 
in case electronic payment is rejected or returned, the Company shall mandatorily print the bank account details of the 
investor on payment instrument. Members are requested to provide their updated bank account pariculars alloted 
ater implementaion of CBS to enable the Company to electronically credit dividend directly in their respecive bank 
accounts.

 Members holding the Company’s shares in dematerialised form are requested to inimate all changes relaing to their 
bank account details, change in their registered address, e-mail ID, nominaion, Naional Electronic Clearing Service 
(NECS), Electronic Clearing Service (ECS) mandates etc. to their respecive Depository Paricipants (DPs), if they have 
not done so already. Members holding the Company’s shares in physical form are requested to inimate such changes 
to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Maheshwari Datamaics Pvt. Ltd.

8. Members desirous of geing any informaion about the accounts and operaions of the Company are requested to 
address their queries to the Company at least 10 (Ten) days in advance of the meeing i.e. by 3rd August, 2015, so that 
proper informaion can be made available at the AGM.

9. Members who hold shares in dematerialised form are requested to bring their Client ID and DP numbers for prompt 
ideniicaion while recording atendance at the AGM.

10. Members who hold shares in physical form in muliple folios in idenical names or joint accounts in the same order 
or names are requested to send the share ceriicates to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents for 
consolidaion into a single folio.
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11. Members who are yet to provide required pariculars for the purpose of maintaining records in the new format 
of Register of Members pursuant to Secion 88(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 3(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administraion) Rules, 2014 are requested to inimate following informaion to the Company’s 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, as may be applicable for respecive members :

 I.  E-mail ID;  II.  Permanent Account Number (PAN) or Corporate Ideniicaion Number (CIN); III. Father's/Mother's/
Spouse Name; IV.  Unique Ideniicaion Number (Aadhar No.); V.  Occupaion; VI. Status; VII. Naionality; VIII. In case 
member is a minor, name of guardian and date of birth of minor member; IX. Name and address of nominee (in Form 
SH-13).

12. Brief details of directors seeking re-appointment at the ensuing AGM :
 a) Mrs. Malai Kanoria (Mrs. Kanoria), (holding DIN 00253241), who was appointed as a director of the Company 

with efect from 9th May, 2014, reires from the Board by rotaion at the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, 
ofers herself for re-appointment. Mrs. Kanoria is an arts graduate and holding the posiion of Managing Director 
of Cheviot Internaional Limited. The Company will be beneited by her rich experience and knowledge.

  Name of other companies in which Mrs. Kanoria also holds the directorship :
  1. Cheviot Internaional Ltd., 2. Cheviot Agro Industries Pvt. Ltd., 3. Harsh Investments Pvt. Ltd.,  4. Elite (India) 

Pvt. Ltd.

  Name of other companies in which Mrs. Kanoria also holds membership of the Commitee of the Board : Nil
  Number of Share held in the Company : 2,85,150 Shares

  Mrs. Kanoria atended two board meeings during the inancial year 2014-15.
  She is a relaive of Chairman and Managing Director (CMD) of the Company. Except CMD, none of the other 

directors and key managerial personnel of the Company and their relaives are concerned or interested, inancially 
or otherwise, in the resoluion set out at Item No. 3. This statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under 
clause 49 of the lising agreement with BSE Limited.

 b) Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria (Mr. Kanoria), aged 59 years, (holding DIN 00060259) is a director of the Company 
from 1st April, 1981. Mr. Kanoria is a commerce graduate and holding the posiion of Chairman and Managing 
Director of the Company since 1st August, 2000. He is an Industrialist having vast experience of 41 years.

  Name of other companies in which Mr. Kanoria also holds the directorship :
  1. Cheviot Internaional Ltd., 2. Cheviot Agro Industries Pvt. Ltd., 3. Harsh Investments Pvt. Ltd.,  4. Elite (India) 

Pvt. Ltd.

  Name of other companies in which Mr. Kanoria also holds membership of the Commitee of the Board : Nil
  Number of Share held in the Company :  3,43,840 Shares

  Mr. Kanoria atended four board meeings during the inancial year 2014-15.

13. Voing through electronic means

 I. In compliance with provisions of Secion 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules framed thereunder and 
clause 35B of the lising agreement, the Company is pleased to provide the facility to members to exercise their 
right to vote on resoluions set forth in this noice by electronic means from a place other than venue of the AGM 
(“remote e-voing”). The remote e-voing service will be provided by Naional Securiies Depository Limited 
(NSDL).

 II. The facility for voing through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM venue and the members atending 
the AGM who have not cast their vote by remote e-voing shall be able to exercise their right to cast vote through 
ballot paper. 

 III. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voing prior to the AGM may also atend the AGM but shall 
not be enitled to cast their vote again. 

 IV. The remote e-voing period shall commence on Monday, 10th August, 2015 (10:00 a.m.) and end on  Wednesday, 
12th August, 2015 (5:00 p.m.). During this period, members of the Company, holding shares either in physical 
form or in dematerialised form, as on the cut-of date, Friday, the 7th August, 2015, may cast their vote by 
remote e-voing. The remote e-voing module shall be disabled by NSDL for voing thereater. Once the vote on 
a resoluion is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

NOTICENOTICE (Contd.)
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 V. The process and manner of remote e-voing are as under:
  A. In case a member receives an e-mail from NSDL [for members whose email IDs are registered with the 

Company/Depository Paricipant(s)] :
   (i) Open the PDF ile viz; “Cheviot Company Limited remote e-voing.pdf” atached to the e-mail with 

your Client ID or Folio No. as password. The said PDF ile contains your user ID and password for 
remote e-voing. Please note that the password is an iniial password.

   (ii) Launch internet browser by typing the following URL: htps://www.evoing.nsdl.com/
   (iii) Click on Shareholder - Login

   (iv) Put user ID and password as iniial password noted in step (i) above. Click Login.
   (v) Password change menu will appear. Change the password with new password of your choice with 

minimum 8 digits/characters or combinaion thereof. Note new password. It is strongly recommended 
not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 

conidenial.
   (vi) Home page of remote e-voing will open. Click on remote e-voing: Acive Voing Cycles.
   (vii) Select “EVEN” of “Cheviot Company Limited”.
   (viii) Now you are ready for remote e-voing as Cast Vote page opens.
   (ix) Cast your vote by selecing appropriate opion and click on “Submit” and also “Conirm” when 

prompted.

   (x) Upon conirmaion, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
   (xi) Once you have conirmed your vote on the resoluion, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
   (xii) Insituional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 

copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resoluion/Authority leter etc. together with atested 
specimen signature of the duly authorised signatory(ies) who are authorised to vote, to the Scruinizer 
through e-mail to evoing@chevjute.com with a copy marked to evoing@nsdl.co.in.

  B. In case a member receives physical copy of the noice of AGM [for members whose email IDs are not 
registered with the Company/Depository Paricipant(s) or requesing physical copy]:

   (i) Iniial password is provided in the following format at the botom of the atendance sheet of the AGM: 
    EVEN (Remote e-voing Event Number);                              USER ID;                              PASSWORD 
   (ii) Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii) to Sl. No. (xii) above, to cast vote.
 VI. In case of any queries, you may refer the frequently asked quesions (FAQs) for members and remote e-voing 

user manual for members available at the download secion of www.evoing.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 
1800-222-990.

 VII. If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voing then you can use your exising user ID and password 
for casing your vote.

 VIII. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user proile details of the folio which may be used 
for sending future communicaion(s).

 IX. The voing rights of members shall be in proporion to their shares of the paid up ordinary share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-of date, Friday, the 7th August, 2015.

 X. Any person, who acquires share(s) of the Company and becomes member of the Company ater despatch of the 
noice of AGM and holding shares as on the cut-of date, Friday, the 7th August, 2015, may obtain the user ID 
and password by sending a request at evoing@nsdl.co.in

  However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voing then you can use your exising user ID 
and password for casing your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot  
user ID/password” opion available on www.evoing.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll free  
no.: 1800-222-990.

 XI. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneicial owners maintained 
by the depositories as on the cut-of date, Friday, the 7th August, 2015 only shall be enitled to avail the facility 
of remote e-voing as well as voing at the AGM through ballot paper.

NOTICE (Contd.)NOTICE (Contd.)
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 XII. Mr. Gaurav Dasgupta, a pracicing advocate at Calcuta High Court, has been appointed as the Scruinizer to 
scruinize the voing and remote e-voing process in a fair and transparent manner.

 XIII. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resoluions on which voing is to be held, allow 
voing with the assistance of Scruinizer, by use of ballot paper for all those members who are present at the 
AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voing facility.

 XIV. The Scruinizer shall, ater the conclusion of voing at the AGM, irst count the votes cast at the AGM and 
thereater unblock the votes cast through remote e-voing in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the 
employment of the Company and shall make, not later than forty-eight hours of the conclusion of the AGM, a 
consolidated scruinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person 
authorised by him in wriing, who shall countersign the same and declare the results of the voing forthwith.

 XV. The results declared alongwith the report of the Scruinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company  
(www.groupcheviot.net) and on the website of NSDL immediately ater the declaraion of results by the Chairman 
or a person authorised by him in wriing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited.

14. The noice of the AGM inter-alia indicaing the process and manner of remote e-voing and the Annual Report for 2015 
are available on the Company’s website (www.groupcheviot.net).

15. All documents referred to in the accompanying noice and the statement annexed thereto shall be open for inspecion 
at the Registered Oice of the Company during normal business hours prior to the date of the AGM between  
10.00 a.m. and 12.00 noon and will also be available for inspecion at the AGM. 

16. The statement pursuant to Secion 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, relaing to the special business set out in the 
noice, is annexed hereto. 

STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Item No. 5
The present term of oice of Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria (Mr. Kanoria), Chairman and Managing Director of the Company 
will expire on 31st July, 2015.
Mr. Kanoria, aged 59 years, is a director of the Company from 1st April, 1981. Mr. Kanoria is a commerce graduate and 
holding the posiion of Chairman and Managing Director of the Company since 1st August, 2000. He is an Industrialist 
having vast experience of 41 years. 
Mr. Kanoria has been associated with the Company for the last several years in his capacity as Chairman and Managing 
Director. In view of his vast experience and signiicant contribuions to the Company’s overall growth and proitability, the 
Board of directors by a resoluion passed on 19th May, 2015 re-appointed Mr. Kanoria as Chairman and Managing Director 
for a further period of ive years with efect from 1st August, 2015 on the terms and condiions menioned in the drat 
agreement to be entered between the Company and Mr. Kanoria.

The principal terms and condiions including the remuneraion governing the re-appointment of Mr. Kanoria are set out 
below:-

I. Salary : ` 2,00,000 per month in the range of ` 2,00,000 to ` 3,00,000 per month as may be determined by the Board 

from ime to ime. 
II. Commission : Commission may be payable at the absolute discreion of the Board, of such amount as may be approved 

by the Board for each year.
III. Perquisites : Mr. Kanoria will also be enitled to furnished residenial accommodaion or house rent allowance, gas, 

electricity, reimbursement of medical expenses incurred in India or abroad including hospitalisaion, surgical charges, 
for self and family and travel relaing thereto, leave travel concession for self and family, fees of clubs, personal accident 
insurance, company maintained car, telephone at residence as perquisites in addiion to salary and commission 
restricted to an amount equal to the annual salary or such other sum as may be determined by the Board from ime 
to ime. Provision for use of Company car for oicial purpose and telephone at residence (including payment for 
local calls and long distance oicial calls) shall not be included in the computaion of perquisites for the purpose of 
calculaion of the said limit. Perquisites shall be evaluated as per the Income Tax Rules, wherever applicable.

 Mr. Kanoria will also be enitled to the following perquisites which shall not be included in the computaion of the 
ceiling on perquisites as speciied above :  

 (a) The Company’s contribuion towards Provident Fund as per the rules of the Company but restricted to the extent 
this is not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

NOTICE (Contd.)
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 (b) Gratuity not exceeding one-half month’s salary for each completed year of service.
 (c) Leave on full pay and allowance as per the rules of the Company but not exceeding one month’s leave for every 

eleven months of service.
 The remuneraion including the value of the perquisites menioned above will be subject to the overall ceilings laid 

down under secions 197 the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with schedule V thereto.
IV. Mr. Kanoria will not be paid any siing fee for atending the meeing of the Board or any Commitee thereof.
V. In the event that the Company in any inancial year during the aforesaid period, has no proits or its proits are 

inadequate, the remuneraion payable to Mr. Kanoria shall not exceed the limits speciied in Secion II of Part II of 
Schedule V to the Act or any modiicaion(s) or re-enactment thereof as minimum remuneraion, subject to such 
approvals as may be required. 

VI. Mr. Kanoria will be reimbursed by the Company of all entertainment and other expenses actually incurred by him in 
connecion with the business of the Company subject, however to such limits as may be ixed by the Board from ime 
to ime.

VII. Mr. Kanoria and the Company shall have right to terminate the appointment by giving three months’ prior noice in 
wriing to the other.

 Name of other Company in which Mr. Kanoria also holds the directorship :
 1. Cheviot Internaional Ltd., 2. Cheviot Agro Industries Pvt. Ltd., 3. Harsh Investments Pvt. Ltd.,  4. Elite (India) Pvt. Ltd.
 Name of other companies in which Mr. Kanoria also holds membership of the Commitee of the Board : Nil
 Number of Share held in the Company : 3,43,840 Shares.
 Mr. Kanoria atended four board meeings during the inancial year 2014-15.
 The Board recommends that the proposed Ordinary Resoluion be passed by the members.
 Except Mr. Kanoria and Mrs. Malai Kanoria, none of the other directors and key managerial personnel of the Company 

and their relaives are concerned or interested, inancially or otherwise, in the resoluion set out at Item No. 5. 
 Copy of the drat agreement referred to in the proposed Ordinary Resoluion may be inspected by any member at the 

Registered Oice of the Company on any working day prior to the date of the AGM between 10.00 a.m. and 12.00 
noon and will also be available for inspecion at the AGM. This statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under 
clause 49 of the lising agreement with BSE Limited.

Item No. 6
As recommended by audit commitee, Board of directors had appointed M/s D. Radhakrishnan & Co., Cost Accountants 
(Registraion No. 000018), being eligible and having sought re-appointment, as cost auditor of the Company, for a 
remuneraion of ̀  32,500 plus applicable taxes and re-imbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred by them to conduct 
an audit of the cost accouning records maintained by the Company for the current inancial year beginning from 1st April, 
2015 and ending on 31st March, 2016.

In terms of Secion 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
the aforesaid remuneraion is required to be raiied by the members.
None of the directors and key managerial personnel of the Company and their relaives are concerned or interested, 
inancially or otherwise, in the resoluion set out at Item No. 6. 
The Board recommends passing of the proposed Ordinary Resoluion in relaion to raiicaion of the remuneraion payable 
to the cost auditor. 

Kolkata, 19th May, 2015 By Order of the Board,
CIN : L65993WB1897PLC001409 CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED

Registered Oice: CS Aditya Banerjee
24, Park Street, Company Secretary
‘Magma House’, (9th Floor),       

Kolkata- 700 016

Ph: (033) 3291-9624/25/28; Fax: (033) 2249-7269/2217-2488
Email: cheviot@chevjute.com Website: www.groupcheviot.net

NOTICE (Contd.)
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Dear Members,

The directors have pleasure in presening their Annual Report on the business and operaions of the Company together 
with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015.
1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Pariculars For the year ended

31st March, 2015

For the year ended

31st March, 2014

Operaing results ater charging depreciaion and amorisaion show a proit of  1,967.38  2,809.33 

Add : Excepional item - Provision against indirect taxes
refundable writen back (P.Y. indirect taxes for earlier years)

  

 97.45  94.87

Add : Other income  2,166.73  914.91 

Proit before tax  4,231.56  3,819.11 

From which have been deducted :

Current tax  749.00  1,042.00 

Tax for earlier years (net)  1.10  9.36 

Deferred tax  23.37  87.37 

Proit ater tax  3,458.09  2,680.38 

Surplus as per last balance sheet  500.02  461.33 

Making a total of  3,958.11  3,141.71 

Which has been appropriated by the directors as under :

Proposed dividend 766.91  676.69 

Tax on proposed dividend 156.13  115.00 

Transferred to SEZ re-investment reserve account  350.00  200.00 

Transferred to general reserve 2,150.00  1,650.00 

Balance surplus carried to balance sheet  535.07  500.02 

 3,958.11  3,141.71 

2. DIVIDEND  

 Your directors are pleased to recommend dividend of ` 17/- per ordinary share of the face value of ` 10/- each  

(i.e. 170%) for the year ended 31st March, 2015 to the members for their approval. 

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVE

 Directors propose to transfer an amount of ` 350 to the Special Economic Zone (SEZ) re-investment reserve account 

and ` 2,150 to the general reserve out of the proit for the year.

4. OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

 Sales, proitability and earnings per ordinary share show under noted posiion during the year under review as 
compared to previous year :

Pariculars For the year ended

31st March, 2015

For the year ended

31st March, 2014

Sales (gross) 26,496.62 27,639.78

Export sales (C.I.F. value) 11,973.47 11,800.19

Operaing proit 1,967.38 2,809.33

Other income 2,166.73 914.91

Proit before tax 4,231.56 3,819.11

Proit ater tax 3,458.09 2,680.38

Earnings per ordinary share of face value of ` 10/- (in `) 76.65 59.42
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 The Jute Industry has been passing through a bad phase and due to sluggish demand, there has been an industry-wide 

cut in producion. Published reports of Indian Jute Mills Associaion relect around 19% reducion in producion of jute 
goods during the period April - March 2015 as compared to corresponding period of previous year.

 In the wake of above scenario, the producion in the Company during the year under review witnessed decrease by 
around 12%. The Company coninues to operate with reduced working of six days a week which was resorted to in 
later part of the previous year. There was steep fall in government orders during irst half of the year under review as 
compared to similar period of previous year which led to decrease in government sales. However, it was a mater of 
saisfacion that the Company was able to arrest the decline in sales by responding to ofers from overseas markets for 
export of jute yarn as also by catering to demand of hessian and local yarn in domesic market.  

 The loss of working resulted in decrease in operaing proit by ` 841.95, being ` 1,967.38 in the year under review 

as compared to ` 2,809.33 in previous year. Proit ater tax was higher at ` 3,458.09 as compared to ` 2,680.38 

during the previous year. Improvement in botom line was largely on account of ad-hoc income from sale of 
old bonds as also income derived from few investments matured during the year and dividend income. Such  
ad-hoc increase in other income may not be sustainable.

 On the export front, though the Company was able to maintain the overall export sales, the overseas market scenario 
was not encouraging. Impact of recession in European countries has resulted in shrinkage in order quanity.

 Accordingly, the Company’s export oriented unit situated at Falta SEZ coninues to operate at reduced capacity. One 
of the major European buyers reported iling of an insolvency peiion in German court which came as sudden and 
surprising news afecing the working of the unit. Steps have been taken to safeguard the receivables by iling claims 
with the oicial administrator appointed by the court as also for recovery of 80% of receivables from Export Credit 
Guarantee Corporaion of India Limited under its buyer exposure policy taken by the Company. Appropriate provisions 
for doubful receivables have been made in the accounts as explained in Note 35 to the inancial statements for the 
year ended 31st March, 2015.

 Your directors would like to state that they are conscious of the said development and have taken efecive steps to 
review Company’s sales policy and put more checks and safeguards, wherever required. Eforts are also being made 
to explore other avenues to increase sale of jute fabric, shopping bag in overseas markets. We are conident to come 
out of the aforesaid unfortunate event. 

5. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

 a) Industry structure and developments

  Under Jute Packaging Materials (Compulsory use in packing commodiies) Act, 1987 (JPMA), order for compulsory 
packaging of food grains at 90% and sugar at 20% coninues up to 30th June, 2015. We are hopeful that the 
government will further extend the Order and shall take efecive steps to check its violaions and will not resort 
to further diluion in the larger interest of the Jute Industry. 

  There is an urgent need to ameliorate the Jute Industry which is facing severe crisis and fall in producion. It is 
earnestly pleaded that instead of erraic procurement of goods by the procuring agency, government should 
streamline the procurement in such a manner that Industry can plan and operate smoothly throughout the year.  

  Government has introduced schemes for giving incenive for exports. A new scheme named as Merchandise 
Exports from India Scheme (MEIS) has been introduced by merging all exising schemes with a single scheme. 
Rewards for export of speciied goods to speciied countries under MEIS shall be payable as percentage of realised 
FOB value in free foreign currency. Your Company is enitled to receive rewards in the form of duty free scrips of 
5% on all jute products exported by the Company in place of exising rate of 2 to 3% being availed by the Company 
under the exising schemes. Export from Falta SEZ unit will also be enitled for the above reward @ 5% as the new 
policy has also made the units operaing in SEZ enitled to receive the reward.  

  This is a welcome and signiicant step taken by the Government which will go a long way in promoing the exports 
of goods from India. 

  Moreover, Naional Jute Board has implemented schemes for providing sanitaion faciliies for the jute mill 
workers, scholarship scheme for children of jute mill workers, export market development assistance scheme and 
incenive scheme for acquisiion of plant and machinery.
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 b) Opportuniies 
   Environmental friendly bio-degradable characterisics of jute ibre will always have an edge over other packing 

materials;

   Increase in use of jute shopping bags, loor coverings, jute geo-texile products provides opportunity to boost 
demand of jute goods. 

 c) Threats / risk and concerns 
  As per requirement of clause 49 of the lising agreement, the Company has consituted a risk management 

commitee. The composiion of the commitee and its role are stated in corporate governance report annexed 
to this report. The key elements of business risks ideniied by the Company and its miigaion measures are as 
under:-

  Compeiion risk and miigaion measures 
  The markets for jute goods are highly compeiive and strong compeiion is faced from Bangladesh. The prices 

of jute goods quoted by Bangladesh who enjoys cost advantage cannot be matched. In order to miigate the said 
risk, eforts are on to bring down the cost of producion by enhancing operaional eiciency and improvement in 
the quality of products. 

  Economic environment and market condiions risk and miigaion measures
  In the interest of Jute Industry, the JPMA had made it mandatory to use jute bags for packaging of certain 

commodiies. However, the compulsion under JPMA has diluted over ime. More risk arises out of alternate 
packing material like HDPE/Polypropylene, which are equally tensile and available in various sizes at an economical 
price in the market, albeit harmful for the environment.

  Industry is thus at high risk to face ierce compeiion from HDPE/Paper/Polypropylene and other packaging 
alternaives available in the domesic market as a subsitute product.

  On the export front, the demand for jute goods is impacted due to economic slowdown and cut throat compeiion 
from Bangladesh jute industry. 

  Strategically, the Company coninue to maintain high quality standard of products and explore potenial markets 
together with securing addiional volumes from exising customers on the basis of record of saisfactory performance 
in earlier dealings. The eforts to enhance quality of products and upgrading their performance parameters are 
aimed at deriving opimum value from the exising customer base and targeing a larger geographical market 
are in line with Company’s eforts to miigate the aforesaid risks. Your Company believe that jute being a bio-
degradable, eco-friendly product, market is expected to keep growing. 

  Fluctuaions in foreign exchange risk and miigaion measures
  The Company has to transact in foreign currencies where luctuaion in currency may impact margins of the 

Company. The risk of currency luctuaion is miigated by managing the uncertainty and volaility of foreign 
exchange luctuaions through hedging. 

  Business operaion risk and miigaion measures
  Some of the business operaion risks and their miigaion plan are outlined below :
  Revenue concentraion : The Company’s revenue generaion is from domesic and export markets. Any downturn 

in demand or unplanned procurement by government agencies could adversely afect the working. The Company 
is taking necessary acions to boost its sales by exploring opportuniies of new customers and innovaive usage of 
jute goods. The Company is coninuously making eforts to increase business volumes with minimum exposure to 
undue risks. 

  Raw Materials : Raw jute is the main raw material for manufacturing of jute goods. Raw jute crop is highly volaile 
and seasonal. Shortage of good quality of raw jute adversely afects the operaions. At imes, acute shortage of 
raw jute crop is observed due to shiting of the farmers to cereal crop producion which fetches greater revenues 
to them. To miigate the risk, the Company has established policies for procurement of raw jute in a planned 
manner. Market is monitored and inventory is built up to take care of slack seasons. 

  Manpower : Jute Industry, being labour intensive, wages consitute a signiicant part of the producion cost. The 
availability and management of labour is very criical for smooth funcioning of the plants. Paucity of skilled 
workers is a major concern. Few measures being taken to miigate this risk include gradual automaion, wherever 
feasible to reduce the dependence on high number of workers.  
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 d) Segment-wise or product-wise performance 

  The Company coninues to operate through two business segments namely, a) Jute goods and b) Capive power 
generaion. However, capive power generaion is not a reportable segment in terms of the criteria laid down in 
paragraph 27 of the accouning standard-17 as the revenue/results/assets of this segment are not more than the 
threshold limit of 10% of the total segment revenue/results/assets.

  The following disclosure under geographical segment has, however, been considered :-

Within India Outside India Total

31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

Sales (gross)  14,523.15 15,839.59  11,973.47  11,800.19 26,496.62 27,639.78

Carrying amount of segment assets  39,756.23 37,358.45 –  –   39,756.23 37,358.45

Capital expenditure  262.54 825.84 –  –   262.54 825.84

 e) Outlook

  Fortune of jute industry is largely dependent on steady demand and opimum uilisaion of capacity. Your Company 
has adequate capacity and lexibility to cater to the requirement from both domesic and overseas markets. We 
are looking forward for a comprehensive policy from government to help generate demand for jute bags in the 
domesic market. For growth in exports, the Company is making eforts to penetrate in new markets and explore 
varied uses of jute products.

  Looking at the overall scenario of the Industry, the working for the current year does not appear to be encouraging 
and outlook for the current year is not very posiive.

 f) Internal control systems and their adequacy 

  The Company has documented policies and procedures required for ensuring orderly and eicient Internal 
Financial Controls (“IFC”) as required under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The audit commitee ater 
considering the views of statutory auditors and internal auditors has found that such IFC, commensurate with the 
size and operaions of the Company, are adequate and operaing eiciently. The internal auditor of the Company 
checks and veriies the internal control in accordance with aforesaid policies documented by the Company. The 
audit commitee is regularly reviewing the internal audit reports covering audit carried out as per scope of audit 
inalised by them in consultaion with internal auditor. Observaions of the internal auditor are circulated to senior 
managerial personnel for their perusal and necessary acion. Correcive acions are taken wherever required. 
The audit commitee, in consultaion with the internal auditor, formulates the scope, funcioning, periodicity and 
methodology for conducing the internal audit. 

 g) Discussion on inancial performance with respect to operaional performance 

  The following are the signiicant areas of inancial performance during the year under review:

  • Sale of jute goods was ` 26,496.62 during the year as compared to ` 27,639.78 during previous year;

  • Producion was lower by 12% mainly due to reduced capacity uilisaion for the reasons explained above in 
the report. Accordingly, operaing proit of the Company was lower by ` 841.95 during the year under review;

  • Finance cost was higher at ` 86.72 during the year under review as against ` 74.18 in previous year. The 

increase in inance cost is mainly due to higher uilisaion of working capital limits;

  • Inventories have decreased by ` 353.83, being ` 4,525.86 as at 31st March, 2015 as against ` 4,879.69 as at 

31st March, 2014 due to more despatches in the last quarter of the year under review;

  • The Company has invested ` 262.54 in ixed assets inclusive of capital advances given during the year.
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 h) Material developments in Human Resource / Industrial Relaions front, including number of people employed 

  Industrial relaions remained cordial during the year under review.  

  As on 31st March, 2015, the Company had 4235 employees on its rolls. 

  The Company coninues to provide beneits and faciliies to deserving stafs under various staf welfare 
schemes during the year. Workers employed at new scale are imparted with in-house training to bring all round 

improvement in their working knowledge and skill. The Company has installed humidiicaion system within the 
factory to provide comfortable working atmosphere. 

  Collecive paricipaion is encouraged at all level and workers are incenivised for good performance. Labour 
issues are mostly addressed by negoiaions and conciliaion. 

  The Company has consituted a commitee for prevenion, prohibiion and redressal of complaints/grievances on 
the sexual harassment of women at work places.

 i) Cauionary statement 

  Statement made in this secion of the report is based on the prevailing posiion in the jute industry and market 
condiions. Actual results might difer from what we perceive with respect to Company’s outlook and performance. 

6. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 In compliance with the requirement of clause 49 of the lising agreement, a separate report on corporate governance 
along with a ceriicate from the statutory auditors of the Company conirming the compliance is atached as Annexure-I 
which forms part of this report.

7. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

 As provided under Secion 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of the annual return for the year ended  
31st March, 2015, is given in Annexure-II in the prescribed form MGT-9, forming part of this report.

8. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

 Pariculars of investments made by the Company have been disclosed in Note 12 and Note 15 to the inancial 
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015.

9. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

 All the transacions with related paries entered during the year under review with omnibus approval of the audit 
commitee were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. However, there was no material 
contract or arrangement or transacion at arm’s length basis entered with a related party during the year under 
review. Thus, disclosure in Form AOC – 2 is not required. 

10. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 Informaion as required under rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided in Annexure-III forming 
part of this Report. 

11. DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

 The Board has developed and implemented a risk management policy of the Company idenifying therein the elements 
of risk and concern that may threaten the existence of the Company. Risk management commitee and the Board 
review the risk elements and miigaion procedures at periodical interval. Areas of risks/concerns/threats have been 
indicated in this report under the head management discussion and analysis report. 

12. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY (CSR)  

 Pursuant to Secion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014, your Company has undertaken aciviies in accordance with CSR Policy (available on Company’s  
website : www.groupcheviot.net) through eligible registered trusts having established track records. Annual Report on 

CSR containing pariculars speciied under the said rules are given in Annexure-IV forming part of this report.
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13. ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

 The Company has established a vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy. The policy allows inimaion by afected 
persons in good faith of concern or misconduct through a writen communicaion. Audit commitee oversees 
the vigil mechanism for disposal of the complaint. Direct access to the chairman of the audit commitee 
is also allowed in excepional cases. The vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy is available on Company’s  
website (www.groupcheviot.net).

14. DIRECTORS 

 Independent directors

 The Board of directors at their meeing held on 9th May, 2014 appointed Mr. Navin Nayar, (holding DIN 00136057),  
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania, (holding DIN 00484489), Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan (holding DIN 00019700) and Mr. Parag 

Keshar Bhatacharjee, (holding DIN 00081899) as independent directors of the Company to hold oice for ive 
consecuive years for a term up to 31st March, 2019 and whose period of oice were not liable to determinaion by 
reirement of directors by rotaion. 

 Non-execuive woman director

 In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and clause 49 of the lising agreement, the Board of 
directors at their meeing held on 9th May, 2014 had appointed Mrs. Malai Kanoria (holding DIN 00253241) as an 
addiional director of the Company. On expiry of term of oice as an addiional director, Mrs. Malai Kanoria was 
appointed as a Director of the Company at the AGM held on 8th August, 2014 whose period of oice was liable to 
determinaion by reirement of directors by rotaion.

 Mrs. Kanoria reires from the Board by rotaion at the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, ofers herself for re-
appointment.

 Wholeime director 

 Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal, wholeime director (holding DIN 00060314) of the Company was re-appointed for a period 
of two years with efect from 1st June, 2014 whose period of oice was liable to determinaion by reirement of 
directors by rotaion. 

 Chairman and Managing Director and CEO 

 On the recommendaion of the nominaion and remuneraion commitee, the Board has re-appointed Mr. Harsh 
Vardhan Kanoria (holding DIN 00060259) as the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company for a further period 
of ive years with efect from 1st August, 2015, upon the terms and condiions as to remuneraion and otherwise as 
set out in the noice convening AGM.  

 Brief details of the directors seeking re-appointment have been given in the noice convening AGM. 

 I. Statement on declaraion given by independent directors

  All independent directors of the Company have given declaraions that they meet the criteria of independence as 
provided in Secion 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 II. Evaluaion of the performance of the board, its commitees and individual directors 

  Nominaion and remuneraion commitee of the Board has devised the criteria for evaluaion of the independent 
directors, the Board and its commitees. The Board has carried out annual evaluaion of its own performance, and 
that of its commitees and individual directors. More details on the same are given in the corporate governance 
report. 

 III. Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneraion including criteria for determining qualiicaions, 
posiive atributes, independence of a director and other maters 

  Nominaion and remuneraion commitee (NRC) idenify persons who are qualiied to become directors in 
accordance with the criteria laid down. The NRC review the composiion and diversity of the Board, keeping in 
view the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and lising agreement and recommend to the Board, appointment/ 
re-appointment of eligible candidates including their terms of appointment and remuneraion. The remuneraion 
policy including criteria for determining qualiicaions, posiive atributes, independence of a director have been 
disclosed in the report on corporate governance.
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15. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 In terms of Secion 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby stated that:-

 (a) in the preparaion of the annual accounts, the applicable accouning standards had been followed along with 
proper explanaion relaing to material departures;

 (b) the directors had selected such accouning policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and 
esimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of afairs of the Company 
at the end of the inancial year and of the proit of the Company for that period;

 (c) the directors had taken proper and suicient care for the maintenance of adequate accouning records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 
prevening and detecing fraud and other irregulariies;

 (d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

 (e) the directors, had laid down internal inancial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
inancial controls are adequate and were operaing efecively;

 (f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operaing efecively.

16. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

 The Board of directors met 4 (four) imes during the year under review. More details are available in the corporate 
governance report. 

17. BOARD’S EXPLANATION ON REMARKS MADE IN THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

 Trading window was closed in accordance with code of internal procedures and conduct (CIPC) for prevenion of 
insider trading in dealing with securiies of Cheviot Company Limited which was taken note of by all the directors and 
designated employees of the Company. However, due to inadvertence, the inimaion for the above could not be given 
to BSE Limited. The Company has taken correcive steps to ensure proper compliance in future.  

18. COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

 The Board has consituted the audit commitee with three independent directors. More details on the audit commitee 
are given in the corporate governance report. 

19. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 Mr. Deo Kishan Mohta (Mr. Mohta), who was holding varied posiions of President (Corporate Afairs), Chief Financial 
Oicer and Company Secretary of the Company, relinquished his posiions as Chief Financial Oicer and Company 
Secretary during the year under review which was accepted by the Board at its meeing held on 9th May, 2014. The 
vacancy arising in the key managerial posiions held by Mr. Mohta was illed-in by the Board at the same meeing by 
appoining Mr. Madhup Kumar Patni as Chief Financial Oicer and Mr. Aditya Banerjee as Company Secretary to act as 
wholeime key managerial personnel of the Company in compliance with Secion 203 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

20. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 Disclosure in terms of provisions of Secion 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneraion of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has been made in Annexure-V forming part of 
this Report.

21. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

 The Company has not accepted deposits from Public under Secion 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

22. DISCLOSURE

 Following disclosures are made under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 :

 (i) The inancial summary or highlights are discussed at the beginning of this report;

 (ii) There is no change in the nature of business;
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 (iii) There is no company which has become or ceased to be the Company’s subsidiary, joint venture or associate 

Company during the year;

 (iv) No signiicant and material order was passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacing the going concern 
status and the company’s operaions in future.

23.  STATUTORY AUDITORS  

 M/s Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Registraion No. 302023E), Statutory Auditors of the Company were 
appointed at the AGM held on 8th August, 2014 to hold oice unil the conclusion of the AGM to be held in 2017 
subject to raiicaion by members at every AGM. The Board recommends raifying the tenure of M/s Jain & Co., 
Chartered Accountants, as statutory auditors of the Company from the conclusion of ensuing AGM unil the conclusion 
of the next AGM. 

 A ceriicate from the auditors has been received to the efect that they meet the criteria laid down under Secion 141 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and are willing to coninue as statutory auditors of the Company.

24. COST AUDITORS

 In terms of Secion 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, on the recommendaion of audit commitee, Board of directors had appointed M/s D. Radhakrishnan & Co., 
Cost Accountants (Registraion No. 000018), being eligible and having sought re-appointment, as cost auditors of 
the Company, for a remuneraion of ` 32,500 plus applicable taxes and re-imbursement of out of pocket expenses 
incurred by them to conduct an audit of the cost accouning records maintained by the Company for the current 
inancial year beginning from 1st April, 2015 and ending on 31st March, 2016.

 As required under Secion 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, the remuneraion payable to cost auditors is being placed at the ensuing AGM for raiicaion by the 
members.

25. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

 Pursuant to Secion 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneraion 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s MR & Associates, a irm of pracicing company 
secretaries to conduct secretarial audit of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2015. The secretarial audit 
report is annexed as Annexure-VI to this report. 

26. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 Your directors express their sincere graitude to inancial insituions, banks, government authoriies, suppliers and all 
stakeholders for their coninued support to the Company. We value the enduring relaion and co-operaion from all 
associates and look forward for their guidance.

 The directors would also like to place on record their appreciaion for the commited performance by employees at all 
levels. 

For and on behalf of the Board
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria

Chairman and Managing Director,

Chief Execuive Oicer 
Kolkata, 19th May, 2015 DIN : 00060259
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ANNEXURE I TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

[Pursuant to clause 49 of the lising agreement with the BSE Limited]

1.  Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance
 The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance is directed towards upholding the integrity, transparency and 

accountability in all afairs of the Company. In pursuit to this objecive, management is commited towards constant 
monitoring of ethical corporate governance pracices. Emphasis is placed on sustained growth by maintaining high 
standard of product quality, transparency in operaions, improved producivity and enhanced customer saisfacion. 
The code of governance strives to atain saisfacion of all stakeholders including customers, shareholders and 
employees. 

2.  Board of Directors
 a)  Composiion
  The composiion of the Board of directors (the Board) is in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the lising agreement. Ater re-consituion of the Board at the Board meeing held on 9th May, 2014 
the total strength of Board increased to 7 (seven) directors of whom one is promoter director (Chairman and 
Managing Director), one is wholeime director, one is non-execuive promoter director and four are independent 
directors. 

  No director is, inter se, related to any other director on the Board, except Mrs. Malai Kanoria, who is related to 
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. 

  Each independent director has conirmed that the total number of independent directorship held during the 
previous year was not more than seven listed companies. 

  b)  Details of atendance of each Director at the Board Meeings and the last Annual General Meeing (AGM) with 
pariculars of their other Directorships and Chairmanships/Memberships of Boards/Commitees.

Name of the Directors Posiion Atendance Pariculars No. of other directorships and other commitee 
memberships/chairmanships held

Board
Meeings

Last AGM
held on 8th 

August, 
2014

Directorships
#

Commitee
Memberships

*

Commitee
Chairmanships 

*

Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria Chairman and 
Managing Director, 
Chief Execuive 
Oicer
(Promoter Category)

4 Yes 4 Nil Nil

Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal Wholeime Director 3 Yes 1 Nil Nil

Mr. Navin Nayar Independent Director 4 Yes 8 Nil Nil

Mr. Parag Keshar Bhatacharjee Independent Director 4 Yes 10 2 Nil

Mr. Sushil Dhandhania Independent Director 4 Yes 8 Nil Nil

Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan Independent Director 3 No 12 3 2

Mrs. Malai Kanoria ** Non Execuive 
Director (Promoter 
Category)

2 No 4 Nil Nil

  # Includes alternate directorship and directorship in Private Limited Companies and Foreign Company.

  * None of the directors of the Company was a member of more than ten Board-level commitees, or a chairman 
of more than ive such commitees, across all companies in which he/she was a director. For reckoning the limit of 
other Commitee membership/chairmanship, the Company has considered only audit commitee and stakeholders 
relaionship commitee.

  ** Appointed w.e.f. 9th May, 2014.
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 c)  Number of Board meeings held and dates on which held 
  4 (four) meeings of the Board were held during the year on 9th May, 2014, 8th August, 2014, 11th November, 

2014 and 7th February, 2015. The maximum gap between two meeings was less than one hundred and twenty 
days. During the year, a separate meeing of the independent directors was held on 11th March, 2015 which was 
atended by all the independent directors.

 d)  Brief details of directors seeking appointment/re-appointment
  The brief details of directors seeking re-appointment are appended to the Noice convening the ensuing annual 

general meeing.

 e) Performance evaluaion

  The nominaion and remuneraion commitee laid down the evaluaion criteria for determining the performance 
of the independent directors on the Board broadly covering preparedness for board meeings; atendance; 
judgements and decisions taken on business operaions; contribuion in developing strategies and risk management 
policies; adherence to Company’s code of conduct and corporate governance, efecive paricipaion in commitee 
meeings, pro-aciveness in highlighing areas of concern at the meeing; sharing of knowledge and business 
informaion; disclosure of interest and list of relaives in imely manner; response from fellow board members and 
senior managerial personnel. 

  Based on criteria laid down by the nominaion and remuneraion commitee, the enire Board carried out its own 
performance evaluaion and that of its commitees and the independent directors (excluding the director being 
evaluated), and recorded saisfactory performance during the year under review.  

  The independent directors held a separate meeing on 11th March, 2015 and carried out inter-alia the performance 
evaluaion of the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company, other non-independent directors and the 
Board as a whole. 

 f) Familiarisaion programme for independent directors

  The Company has a familiarisaion programme for independent directors and the same is available on the website 
of the Company (www.groupcheviot.net). 

 g) Other provisions

  The Company has proper systems to enable the Board to periodically review compliance reports prepared by 

the Company in respect of laws applicable to the Company, as well as steps taken by the Company to recify any 
instances of non-compliance. The Board has proper plans in place for orderly succession for appointments to the 
Board and senior managerial category.

3.  Audit commitee

 i)  Brief descripion of Terms of Reference  

  In accordance with the provisions of Secion 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 audit commitee of the Board 
exercise powers, perform roles and review informaion as necessary from ime to ime. The funcions of audit 
commitee are elaborately expressed under clause 49 of the lising agreement. Keeping in view the provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 and lising agreement, the terms of reference of the audit commitee inter alia include :

  l Examinaion of the quarterly and annual inancial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;
  l Recommending the terms of appointment of the statutory auditors and cost auditors of the Company along 

with proposed remuneraion;
  l	 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well 

as post-audit discussion to ascertain auditor’s independence and performance and efeciveness of audit 
process;

  l	 Scruiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
  l	 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit funcion, reporing structure coverage and frequency of internal 

audit;
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  l	 Examining the indings of the internal auditors and to discuss these periodically with the Company’s oicials 
relaing to internal control procedures;

  l	 Reviewing the compliances with lising agreement and other compliances;
  l	 Reviewing the Company’s inancial and risk management policies;
  l	 Transacions with related paries;
  l	 Reviewing the accouning policies and adopion of applicable accouning standards.
 ii) Composiion 
  The composiion of the audit commitee is as follows : 

Name of the directors Designaion Category

Mr. Navin Nayar Chairman Independent Director

Mr. Parag Keshar Bhatacharjee Member Independent Director

Mr. Sushil Dhandhania Member Independent Director

  All the members of the commitee have rich experience and knowledge in inancial and accouning areas.
 iii)  Meeings and atendance 
  During the year, 4 (four) meeings of the audit commitee were held on 9th May, 2014, 7th August, 2014,  

11th November, 2014 and 6th February, 2015.

Name of the directors Number of meeings atended
Mr. Navin Nayar 4

Mr. Parag Keshar Bhatacharjee 4

Mr. Sushil Dhandhania 4

  President (Corporate Afairs), Chief Financial Oicer, representaive of statutory auditor, internal auditors and cost 
auditors were invitees to the meeings of the audit commitee. The chairman of the audit commitee was present 
at the last AGM of your Company held on 8th August, 2014. Minutes of each audit commitee are placed before 
the Board for noing. 

  The maximum gap between any two meeings was less than one hundred and twenty days.
4.  Nominaion and remuneraion commitee
 i)  Brief descripion of Terms of Reference
  The role and terms of reference of the nominaion and remuneraion commitee are in accordance with the 

provisions of Secion 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as speciied under cause 49 of the lising agreement.
  The terms of reference include :
  l	 To recommend to the Board a policy, relaing to the remuneraion for the directors, key managerial personnel 

and other employees;

  l	 To formulate the criteria for determining qualiicaions, posiive atributes and independence of a director;
  l	 To devise a policy on Board diversity;

  l	 To formulate the criteria for evaluaion of the Board, its member including independent directors and every 
other Commitee formed by the Board;

  l	 To idenify persons who are qualiied to become directors and who may be appointed in senior managerial 
category in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their appointment and/or 

removal;

  l	 To carry out evaluaion of every director's performance;
  l	 To recommend terms of appointment/re-appointment of the managing director(s), whole-ime director(s), 

non-execuive directors and independent directors;
  l	 To prepare and propose the succession planning of Board members and senior managerial personnel;
  l	 To evaluate and recommend changes in the remuneraion of the managing director, wholeime director, key 

managerial personnel and senior managerial personnel under the remuneraion policy.
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 ii)  Composiion
  The composiion of nominaion and remuneraion commitee is as follows :

Name of the directors Designaion Category

Mr. Sushil Dhandhania Chairman Independent Director

Mr. Navin Nayar Member Independent Director

Mr. Parag Keshar Bhatacharjee Member Independent Director

 iii)  Meeings and atendance 
  During the year, 4 (four) meeings of the nominaion and remuneraion commitee were held on 9th May, 2014, 

7th August, 2014, 6th February, 2015 and 11th March, 2015.

Name of the directors Number of meeings atended
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania 4

Mr. Navin Nayar 4

Mr. Parag Keshar Bhatacharjee 4

 iv)  Disclosure of remuneraion policy and evaluaion criteria

  A. Remuneraion policy 

   1. The objecives of this policy are to:

    1.1 determine the level and composiion of remuneraion that will atract, retain and moivate 
directors, KMPs, senior managerial personnel and other employees of the Company;

    1.2 provide a well-balanced and performance based remuneraion package taking into account 
industry standard and relevant corporate regulaions.

   2.  Policy principles

    The process of remuneraion shall be transparent, unbiased and conducted ater appraisal of the 
performance of each director and employee in accordance with his/her roles and responsibiliies within 
the organisaion against appropriate performance benchmarks. Their contribuion and value addiion 
for the growth of the Company shall be considered while ixing their remuneraion and subsequent 
promoion. The Company shall strive to pay an equitable remuneraion, capable of atracing and 
retaining high quality personnel taking into consideraion the market trend of remuneraion packages 
in the same sector.  Remuneraion package at various levels shall be standardised, keeping enough 
scope to make it lexible with a view to reward employees with excepional talent and competence. The 
Company shall ensure that the remuneraion at various levels is afordable and sustainable. 

   3. Remuneraion to directors 

    Payments to directors by way of remuneraion, siing fee, commission are subject to the approval of 
Board and members of the Company and restricted to the overall maximum managerial remuneraion 
under Secion 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

    (a) Remuneraion to execuive directors

     1. Appointment/re-appointment of execuive directors shall be on contractual basis. The 
nominaion and remuneraion commitee shall idenify qualiied person for the posiion 
of execuive director and recommend their remuneraion to the Board of directors. Such 
proposal with or without modiicaion shall be recommended by the Board to the members of 
the Company for approval. 

     2. The remuneraion to execuive director shall take into account the Company’s overall 
performance, execuive director’s contribuion for the same and the industry standards.
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     3. Remuneraion to execuive director shall include ixed components of salary, allowances, 
medical insurance premium, perquisites and reirement beneits as may be decided by the 
nominaion and remuneraion commitee from ime to ime payable on monthly basis and 
commission on net proits. The total remuneraion shall be restricted within the overall 
maximum managerial remuneraion under Secion 197 of the Companies Act, 2013.

     4. In the event of absence or inadequacy of proit in any inancial year, the overall remuneraion 
to execuive directors shall be governed by Secion II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies 
Act, 2013.

    (b) Remuneraion to non-execuive directors
     Non-execuive directors and independent directors shall be paid siing fee for every meeing 

of the Board atended by them as member. In addiion, they shall be paid commission up to an 
aggregate amount not exceeding 1% of the net proits of the Company for the year. The amount of 
commission shall be determined by the Board based on their atendance, ime and efort devoted 
and any other contribuion to the organisaion.

  4. Remuneraion of key managerial personnel (KMP) and senior managerial personnel (SMP)
   Remuneraion to KMP and SMP is ixed at a level aimed at atracing and retaining execuives with professional 

and personal competence, showing good performance towards achieving Company goals. The ixed 
component of remuneraion shall include salary, allowances, medical insurance premium, perquisites and 
reirement beneits as may be determined by the nominaion and remuneraion commitee. In addiion, KMP 
and SMP shall have variable incenive linked with performance of previous year which shall be decided year 
on year basis. Ex-graia/rewards are payable to KMP and SMP on outstanding performance of the Company. 
The remuneraion of the KMP and SMP at the ime of appointment would require approval of Board.  

   In accordance with the condiions of service with the Company, execuive directors, KMP and SMP would be 
eligible to seek interest-free loans and/or advances in order to meet any exigency which shall be repayable 
out of future salary earnings in agreed monthly installments. The management reserves the right to sancion 
amount of loan and/or advance and the period of repayment based on overall performance. 

  B. Disclosure of criteria for determining qualiicaions, posiive atributes and independence of a director
   With the objecive of ensuring that the Company’s Board is competent at all points of ime to be able to take 

decisions commensurate with the size and scale of operaions and complexiies of business, the nominaion 
and remuneraion commitee laid down the following criteria for determining qualiicaions, posiive atributes 
and independence of a director:

   1. Qualiicaions:-
    • Person shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more ields of industry, 

inance, law, management, sales, markeing, administraion, research, corporate governance, 
operaions or other disciplines related to the Company’s business;

    • The person must be a graduate or equivalent to be a member of the Board. 
   2. Posiive atributes :-
    • Person shall uphold ethical standards and probity and shall have requisite experience and proiciency 

to direct and control business afairs; 
    • He/she shall have the ability to act objecively and construcively; 
    • Allocate suicient ime and atenion to the Company performance and assist the Board in 

implemening the best corporate governance pracices.
   3. Independence :-

    A person willing to be inducted in the Board must abide by the following code of conduct to maintain 
independence in his/her judgements :

    • To ensure that personal interest do not conlict with interest of the Company;
    • To take utmost care and diligence in exercising the powers atached to the oice in performance of 

the duies;
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    • To act in accordance with the highest standards of personal and professional integrity and maintain 
honesty and ethical conduct in the best interests of the Company;

    • To ensure not to provide any informaion to the press and any other publicity media unless speciically 
authorised to do so;

    • To remain independent in judgements and acions in respect of all decisions taken by the Board;

    • To ensure that conidenial informaion acquired in the course of work is disclosed only if permited 
by the Company or in accordance with requirements of law.

 v) Details of remuneraion of directors

  Details of remuneraion of execuive directors for the year ended 31st March, 2015:

Name of the directors Salary Commission Contribuion to 
provident fund

Esimated value of 
other perquisites

Tenure of 
appointment

Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 18.00 153.00 1.80 11.85 5 years from 1st 
August, 2010

Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal 15.00 15.00 1.50 9.07 2 years from 1st 
June, 2014

  The appointment of the execuive directors is governed by the aricles of associaion of the Company and the 
resoluions passed by the Board of directors and the members of the Company. 

  Efecive from 9th May, 2014, all appointments and terms of remuneraion are being considered by the Board 
based on the recommendaion of the nominaion and remuneraion commitee.

  As per terms of appointment, the Company and the execuive directors have the right to terminate the appointment 
by giving three months’ prior noice in wriing to the other. There is no provision for payment of severance fees 
under the resoluions governing the appointment of execuive directors. 

  Details of remuneraion of non-execuive/independent directors for the year ended 31st March, 2015:

Non-Execuive/Independent directors Siing fees Commission

Mrs. Malai Kanoria* 0.10 4.00

Mr. Sushil Dhandhania 0.20 4.00

Mr. Navin Nayar 0.20 4.00

Mr. Parag Keshar Bhatacharjee 0.20 4.00

Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan ** 0.15 4.00

  *Appointed w.e.f. 9th May, 2014. 

  ** Paid to the irm in which Director is a partner.  

  The remuneraion to non-execuive directors was decided by the Board of directors of the Company within the 
limits speciied in the special resoluion passed by the members. Efecive from 9th May, 2014, all appointments 
and terms of remuneraion are being considered by the Board based on the recommendaion of the nominaion 
and remuneraion commitee. 

  The Company has not issued any stock opions to its Directors.

  None of the independent directors holds any share in the Company.

  The Company has not entered into any material pecuniary relaionship or transacions with the non-execuive 
directors.

 vi)  Policy on Board Diversity 

  The nominaion and remuneraion commitee have devised a policy on Board diversity.
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5. Stakeholders Relaionship Commitee

 a)  Composiion

  The composiion of stakeholders relaionship commitee is as follows :

Name of the directors Designaion Category

Mr. Sushil Dhandhania Chairman Independent Director

Mr. Parag Keshar Bhatacharjee Member Independent Director

Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal Member Wholeime Director

 b)  Meeings and atendance

  Four meeings of the said commitee were held on 9th May, 2014, 7th August, 2014, 11th November, 2014 and 
7th February, 2015.

Name of the directors Number of meeings atended
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania 4

Mr. Parag Keshar Bhatacharjee 4

Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal 3

 c)  Scope of stakeholders relaionship commitee

  The Commitee deals with various maters relaing to redressal of shareholders’ and investors’ queries and 
grievances such as transfers and transmissions of shares, issue of duplicate share ceriicates, sub-division and 
consolidaion of ceriicates, non-receipt of annual reports, non-receipt of declared dividend etc. 

  The Commitee also reviews the status of dematerialisaion/re-materialisaion of shares and suggests measures 
for improvement of procedures and systems.

  86 queries/complaints received from the shareholders during the year under review have been redressed to the 
saisfacion of shareholders. The Company had no request pending for share transfer/transmission at the close of 
inancial year. Queries received from the investors are replied generally within 15 days of the receipt of the leters/
mails.

 d)  Compliance Oicer

  Mr. Deo Kishan Mohta, President (Corporate Afairs) acted as the Secretary to all the Commitees and was 
the Compliance Oicer of the Company upto 8th May, 2014. Mr. Aditya Banerjee, Company Secretary was 
appointed to act as the Secretary to all the Commitees and Compliance Oicer of the Company with efect from  
9th May, 2014.

6. Other commitees

 I. Corporate Social Responsibility Commitee

  a) Composiion

   The composiion of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commitee is as follows:

Name of the directors Designaion Category

Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria Chairman Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan Member Independent Director

Mr. Sushil Dhandhania Member Independent Director

   Corporate social responsibility (CSR) Commitee of the Board was consituted on 9th May, 2014 in order 
to formulate and recommend to the Board a CSR Policy indicaing the aciviies to be undertaken by the 
Company and to discharge such other responsibiliies as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.  
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  b) Meeings and atendance

   Two meeings of the corporate social responsibility commitee were held on 9th May, 2014 and  
11th November, 2014 which were atended by all the members.

 II. Risk Management Commitee

  a) Composiion

   The composiion of risk management commitee is as follows :

Name of the members Designaion Category

Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria Chairman Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal Member Wholeime Director
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania Member Independent Director

Mr. Navin Nayar Member Independent Director

Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria Member President

Mr. Deo Kishan Mohta Member President (Corporate Afairs)
Mr. Madhup Kumar Patni Member Chief Financial Oicer

  The Company has laid down procedure to inform board members about the risk assessment and minimisaion 
procedures. The roles and responsibiliies of the risk management commitee are deined by the Board and 
includes reviewing the exising risk management plan and to take required acion towards idenifying new areas 
of potenial risk exposure, create necessary condiions towards implementaion of risk management plan and 
procedures within the organisaion to manage all ideniied risks, periodical monitoring of adequate compliances 
with adopted risk management plans and reporing to the Board for the remedial acions taken to redress areas 
of weaknesses.

 b)  Meeings and atendance

  A meeing of the risk management commitee was held on 11th March, 2015 which was atended by all the 
members.

7.  General Body Meeings

 a)  Locaion and date/ime where last three Annual General Meeings (AGM) were held and No. of special 
resoluion passed:

Financial Year Locaion Date Time No. of Special 
Resoluion Passed

2011-2012 The Sitaram Seksaria Auditorium 

Bharaiya Bhasha Parishad, 36A, 
Shakespeare Sarani (4th Floor), 

Kolkata-700 017

27th July, 2012 11.00 a.m. Nil

2012-2013 26th July, 2013 11.00 a.m. Nil

2013-2014 8th August, 2014 11.00 a.m. 3

 b) Postal Ballot
  No special resoluion was passed during last year through postal ballot. There is no item on the agenda of ensuing 

AGM which requires passing a special resoluion through postal ballot.  
8. Disclosures
 • There are no related party transacions of material nature made by Company with its promoters, directors or 

their relaives etc. that may have potenial conlict with the interests of Company at large. All transacions with 
related party were entered in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length price with prior omnibus 
approval of the audit commitee in line with the policy on related party transacions of the Company. Disclosure as 
required under accouning standard - 18 has been made in Note 48 to the inancial statements for the year ended  
31st March, 2015. 
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 • Policy on related party transacions and other policies and code of conduct adopted by the Board are displayed on 
the website (www.groupcheviot.net).

 • During the last three years, no penalies or stricture have been imposed on the Company by the BSE Limited or 
SEBI or any other statutory authority for non compliance of any mater related to the capital market.

 • Pursuant to Secion 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and clause 49 of the lising agreement, the Company has 
established a vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy as disclosed in the Board Report. No personnel has been 

denied access to the audit commitee.  

 • The Company does not have any subsidiary.

 • The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of clause 49 of the lising agreement.

9.  Means of Communicaion

 • The inancial results of the Company are sent to BSE Limited and published in newspapers as required under 
clause 41 of the lising agreement. Half-yearly declaraion of inancial performance is not sent to each household 
of shareholders.

 • Quarterly inancial results are normally published in Business Standard in its all India ediions (in English) and 
Aajkal (in Bengali).

 • Unaudited quarterly and audited annual inancial results, shareholding patern etc. are displayed on the website 
of the Company “www.groupcheviot.net” at the end of each quarter/year. 

 • The Company has not made any presentaion to insituional investors or to the analysts during the year under 
review.

 • The management discussion and analysis report forms part of the directors’ report.

10.  General shareholder informaion :

i) AGM : Date, Time and Venue    13th August, 2015 at 11:00 a.m. at The Sitaram Seksaria Auditorium, 

Bharaiya Bhasha Parishad, 36A, Shakespeare Sarani, 4th Floor, 
Kolkata - 700 017 

ii) Financial Calendar (Tentaive) I.

II.

III.

IV.

V.

Financial Year : 

First quarter results 
Half yearly results 
Third quarter results
Audited annual Accounts

:

:

:

:

:

April 2015 to March 2016

13th August, 2015

On or before 14th November, 2015
On or before 14th February, 2016
On or before 30th May, 2016

iii) Date of book closure 8th August, 2015 to 13th August, 2015 (both days inclusive)

iv) Dividend payment date 18th August, 2015

v) Lising on Stock Exchange
(Equity Shares)

BSE Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400 001

Lising fees for the year 2015-2016 has been paid.
vi) Stock Code-Physical 526817 on BSE Limited

Demat ISIN Number for NSDL and CDSL INE974B01016

vii) Market Price data: High, Low during 

each month in last inancial year
Informaion has been given at the end of clause 10.

viii) Stock performance of the Company in 
comparison to BSE Sensex. 
(April, 2014 to March, 2015)

Informaion has been given at the end of clause 10.

ix) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent Maheshwari Datamaics Pvt. Ltd.
6, Mangoe Lane, (2nd Floor), Kolkata - 700 001 

Phone : 033- 2243 5029/5809 Fax : 033-2248 4787
E-mail : mdpl@cal.vsnl.net.in
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x) Share Transfer System Informaion has been given at the end of clause 10.
xi) Distribuion of Shareholding as on  

 31st March, 2015

Informaion has been given at the end of clause 10.

xii) Dematerialisaion of shares and 
liquidity

As on 31st March, 2015, 96.1024% of the Company’s paid-up share capital 
represening 4335418 shares is held in dematerialised form.

xiii) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or 

any converible instruments, conversion 
date and likely impact on equity

Not issued

xiv) Plant Locaions The Company’s plants are located at following places:
i)  19, Mehta Road, Badekalinagar, Budge Budge, 
     24, Parganas (South) - 700 137, (West Bengal);
ii)  Sector II, Falta Special Economic Zone, Falta, 
     24,  Parganas (South) - 743 504, (West Bengal).

xv) Address for Correspondence Cheviot Company Limited
CIN : L65993WB1897PLC001409 
24, Park Street, Magma House, (9th Floor), Kolkata - 700 016
Phone : 033 - 3291 9624/25/28
Fax :  033 - 2249 7269 
Email :  cheviot@chevjute.com
E-voing services e-mail ID : evoing@chevjute.com
Investor service e-mail ID : investorservices@chevjute.com 
Website :  www.groupcheviot.net

Informaion in respect of clause 10 (vii )
Market Price data: High, Low during 2014-2015 is given in the table below : 

Month BSE Limited

High (`) Low (`)

April, 2014 328.40 296.00

May, 2014 355.70 304.00

June, 2014 373.95 329.55

July, 2014 406.90 354.10

August, 2014 370.00 306.05

September, 2014 390.00 331.00

October, 2014 370.00 325.00

November, 2014 376.90 336.50

December, 2014 400.00 293.60

January, 2015 389.80 325.00

February, 2015 374.90 328.00

March, 2015 363.00 336.40
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Informaion in respect of clause 10 ( viii )
Stock performance of the Company in comparison to BSE Sensex (April, 2014 to March, 2015) :

Month Company’ share price at BSE Limited in (`) BSE Sensex 
High Low High Low

April, 2014 328.40 296.00 22939.31 22197.51

May, 2014 355.70 304.00 25375.63 22277.04

June, 2014 373.95 329.55 25725.12 24270.20

July, 2014 406.90 354.10 26300.17 24892.00

August, 2014 370.00 306.05 26674.38 25232.82

September, 2014 390.00 331.00 27354.99 26220.49

October, 2014 370.00 325.00 27894.32 25910.77

November, 2014 376.90 336.50 28822.37 27739.56

December, 2014 400.00 293.60 28809.64 26469.42

January, 2015 389.80 325.00 29844.16 26776.12

February, 2015 374.90 328.00 29560.32 28044.49

March, 2015 363.00 336.40 30024.74 27248.45

Informaion in respect of clause 10(x)

Share Transfer System

Share transfers in physical and demat form are processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Maheshwari 
Datamaics Pvt. Ltd. on regular basis. The transfer/transmission of shares are approved in accordance with the powers 
delegated by the Board of Directors to the Chairman and Managing Director, Wholeime Director, President (Corporate 
Afairs) and Company Secretary. 

The shares lodged for transfers/dematerialisaion are processed within 15 days from the date of their lodgement, if transfer 
instruments are found valid and complete in all respects. 

As sipulated by SEBI, Messers MR & Associates, a irm of Pracicing Company Secretaries carries out the secretarial audit 
to reconcile the total admited Capital in dematerialised form (held with NSDL and CDSL) and total number of shares in 
physical form and to conirm that the total listed and paid-up capital are in agreement with the aggregate number of 
shares. This audit is carried out in every quarter and the report is submited to the BSE Limited. 

Informaion in respect of clause 10 ( xi )

a) Distribuion of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2015 :

Number of Ordinary 
shares held 

Number of Shares Percentage of 
Shareholding

Number of 
Shareholders/folios

Percentage of 
Shareholders

Up  to  500 5,21,280 11.5551 5548 94.1137

501 to 1000 1,41,987 3.1474 194 3.2909

1001 to 2000 1,29,621 2.8733 92 1.5606

2001 to 3000 65,882 1.4604 26 0.4410

3001 to 4000 30,443 0.6748 9 0.1527

4001 to 5000 35,700 0.7914 8 0.1357

5001 to 10000 63,752 1.4132 9 0.1527

10001 and above 35,22,585 78.0844 9 0.1527

Total 45,11,250 100.0000 5895 100.0000

Physical Mode 1,75,832 3.8976 1505 25.5301

Demat Mode 43,35,418 96.1024 4390 74.4699
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b)  Categories of equity shareholders as on 31st March, 2015 :

Category

code

Category of shareholders Number of 
shareholders

Total number 

of shares
As a 

percentage of 
total Shares

(A) Shareholding of Promoter and promoter Group*
1. Indian 7 33,83,312 74.9972

2. Foreign 0 0 0.0000

Total Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group 7 33,83,312 74.9972

(B) Public shareholding 

1. Insituions 21 20,868 0.4626

2. Non-insituions 5,867 11,07,070 24.5402

Total Public Shareholding 5,888 11,27,938 25.0028

(C ) Shares held by Custodians and against which Depository 

Receipts have been issued

1. Promoter & Promoter Group 0 0 0.0000

2. Public 0 0 0.0000

Total Shares held by Custodians 0 0 0.0000

TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C) 5,895 45,11,250 100.0000

*As per disclosure under regulaion 30(2) of the Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Substanial Acquisiion of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulaions, 2011, furnished by the promoters.
11. Declaraion on compliance with Company's Code of Conduct
 The Board has formulated a code of conduct applicable to all its members and senior managerial personnel of the 

Company incorporaing duies of independent directors which has been posted on the website of the Company 
(www.groupcheviot.net). A declaraion by Chief Execuive Oicer of the Company airming the compliance with the 
Company's code of conduct by the Board members and senior managerial personnel of the Company is appended to 
this report. 

12. CEO and CFO ceriicaion
 Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing Director, Chief Execuive Oicer and Mr. Madhup Kumar Patni, 

Chief Financial Oicer of the Company have provided annual ceriicaion on the inancial statements and the cash 
low statement to the Board in terms of clause 49 of the lising agreement.

13. Status of compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory requirements
 a. Mandatory requirements
  The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements prescribed under clause 49 of the lising agreement. 

The auditors’ ceriicate regarding compliance of condiions of corporate governance by the Company is annexed 
to the Directors’ Report.

 b. Non-mandatory requirements
  The Chairman of the Company being an execuive director, maintaining a chairman’s oice for non-execuive 

Chairman is not applicable. The Company did not send half yearly declaraion of inancial performance to each 
household of shareholders since the inancial results were made available in the website for public informaion. 
The Company has received unqualiied inancial statements during the year ended 31st March, 2015 from the 
auditors. The Company has not appointed separate persons to the post of Chairman and Managing Director/CEO. 
The internal auditors of the Company directly reports to the audit commitee.  

For and on behalf of the Board 
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 

Chairman and Managing Director,

 Chief Execuive Oicer
Kolkata, 19th May, 2015 DIN : 00060259
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 Declaraion regarding compliance with Company's Code of Conduct as required 
under Clause 49 of the Lising Agreement

I hereby declare that all the Board members and senior managerial personnel of the Company have airmed 
compliance with the Company’s code of conduct for the inancial year ended 31st March, 2015. 

Harsh Vardhan Kanoria

            Chairman and Managing Director,

               Chief Execuive Oicer
Kolkata, 19th May, 2015  DIN : 00060259

Auditors’ Ceriicate on Compliance with the condiions of corporate governance  
under Clause 49 of the Lising Agreement

To the Members of Cheviot Company Limited
We have examined the compliance of condiions of corporate governance by Cheviot Company Limited (the 
Company) for the year ended 31st March, 2015, as sipulated in clause 49 of the lising agreement of the Company 
with the BSE Limited.

The compliance of condiions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examinaion 
was limited to procedures and implementaion thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance 
of the condiions of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the inancial 
statements of the Company.
In our opinion and to the best of our informaion and according to the explanaion given to us, we cerify that the 
Company has complied with the condiions of corporate governance as sipulated in the above menioned lising 
agreement.

We have been explained that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the 
Company as per the records maintained by the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
eiciency or efeciveness with which the management has conducted the afairs of the Company.

 For Jain & Co.

 Chartered Accountants
 Registraion No. 302023E
P-21/22, Radhabazar Street, CA P. K. JAIN
Kolkata - 700 001 Partner 

Dated the 19th day of May, 2015 Membership No. 52018
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FORM NO. MGT-9
Extract of annual return as on the inancial year ended on 31st March, 2015

[Pursuant to Secion 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administraion) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS : 

i) CIN L65993WB1897PLC001409

ii) Registraion Date 27th December, 1897

iii) Name of the Company Cheviot Company Limited

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Limited Company

v) Address of the Registered oice and 
contact details

24, Park Street

Magma House, 9th Floor

Kolkata- 700016;

Phone - 3291-9624/25/28;

Fax Number - 22497269/ 2217 2488;
Email ID: cheviot@chevjute.com

vi) Whether listed company or not Yes

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Maheshwari Datamaics Private Limited
6, Mangoe Lane, (2nd Floor), Kolkata - 700 001

Phone : 033-2243 5029/5809;

Fax : 033-2248 4787
E-mail : mdpl@cal.vsnl.net.in

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY  

 All the business aciviies contribuing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated :

Sl. 
No.

Name and Descripion  of 
main products / services

NIC Code of the Product/ service %  to total turnover of the company

1 Jute Products 131, 139 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES  -

S. 
No

Name and Address of the 
Company

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ 

SUBSIDIARY/ 

ASSOCIATE

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
Secion

1 Harsh Investments Private Limited 

24, Park Street, Magma House, 9th 

Floor, Kolkata- 700 016

U28993WB1971PTC028158 HOLDING 57.0592 2(46)
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

 i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
(As on 1st April, 2014)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
(As on 31st March, 2015)

% Change 
during the 

year     Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

A. Promoters
1) Indian

a) Individuals/HUF  7,99,181  -    7,99,181  17.7153  7,99,181  -    7,99,181  17.7153  -   

b) Central Government/State 

Government(s)

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

c) Bodies Corporate  25,84,131  -    25,84,131  57.2819  25,84,131  -    25,84,131  57.2819  -   

d) Banks/FI  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

e) Any other  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Sub-Total (A)(1)  33,83,312  -    33,83,312  74.9972  33,83,312  -    33,83,312  74.9972  -   
2) Foreign

a) NRIs- Individuals  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

b) Other- Individuals  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

c) Bodies Corporate  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

d) Banks/FI  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

e) Any other  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Sub-Total (A)(2)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total shareholding of Promoters 
(A) = (A)(1) + (A)(2)

 33,83,312  -    33,83,312  74.9972  33,83,312  -    33,83,312  74.9972  -   

B. Public Shareholding
1) Insituions

a) Mutual Funds  100  100  200  0.0044  100  100  200  0.0044  -   

b) Banks/FI  126  7,374  7,500  0.1663  126  7,374  7,500  0.1663  -   

c) Central Govt.  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

d) State Govt(s)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

e) Venture Capital Funds  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

f) Insurance Companies  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

g) FIIs  13,168  -    13,168  0.2919  13,168  -    13,168  0.2919  -   

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

i) Others (specify)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Sub-Total (B)(1)  13,394  7,474  20,868  0.4626  13,394  7,474  20,868  0.4626  -   
2) Non-Insituions

a) Bodies Corporate

i) Indian  1,42,712  9,121  1,51,833  3.3657  1,39,440  9,121  1,48,561  3.2931  (0.0726)

ii) Overseas  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
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Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
(As on 1st April, 2014)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
(As on 31st March, 2015)

% Change 
during the 

year     Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders holding 

nominal share capital upto ` 1 lakh

 6,89,787  137,950  8,27,737  18.3483  7,38,517  1,33,403  8,71,920  19.3277  0.9794 

ii) Individual shareholders holding 

nominal share capital in excess of 
` 1 lakh

 77,165  -    77,165  1.7105  33,817  -    33,817  0.7496  (0.9609)

c) Others (specify)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Non Resident Individual  23,625  18,605  42,230  0.9361  25,410  18,578  43,988  0.9751  0.0390 

Foreign Naional  -   7,256 7,256 0.1608  -   7,256 7,256 0.1608  -   

Clearing Member  839  -    839  0.0186  1,130  -    1,130  0.0251  0.0065 

Trusts  10  -    10  0.0002  398  -    398  0.0088  0.0086 

Sub-Total (B) (2)  9,34,138  1,72,932  11,07,070  24.5402  9,38,712  1,68,358  11,07,070  24.5402  -   
Total Public Shareholding
(B) = (B) (1) + (B) (2)

 9,47,532  1,80,406  11,27,938  25.0028  9,52,106  1,75,832  11,27,938  25.0028  -   

C) Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Grand Total (A+B+C)  43,30,844  1,80,406  45,11,250  100.0000  43,35,418  1,75,832  45,11,250  100.0000  -   

ii)  Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. 
No. Shareholder's Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year
(As on 1st April, 2014)

Shareholding at the end of the year
(As on 31st March, 2015)

% Change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year    

No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Total 
Shares 

pledged/ 
encumbered 

to total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Total 
Shares 

pledged/ 
encumbered 

to total shares
1 Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 3,43,840 7.6218  -   3,43,840 7.6218  -    -   

2 Mrs. Malai Kanoria 2,85,150 6.3209  -   2,85,150 6.3209  -    -   

3 Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria 1,70,191 3.7726  -   1,70,191 3.7726  -    -   

4 Harsh Investments Private Limited 25,74,081 57.0592  -   25,74,081 57.0592  -    -   

5 Abhyadoot Finance and Investments Private Limited 9,000 0.1995  -   9,000 0.1995  -    -   

6 Cheviot Internaional Limited 150 0.0033  -   150 0.0033  -    -   

7 Cheviot Agro Industries Private Limited 900 0.0199  -   900 0.0199  -    -   

Total 33,83,312 74.9972  -   33,83,312 74.9972  -    -
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iii)  Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl No. Shareholding at the beginning of the year
(As on 1st April, 2014)

Cumulaive Shareholding during the year
(1st April, 2014 to 31st March, 2015)

No. of Shares % of Total  
Shares of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total  
Shares of the Company

At the beginning of the year

There is no change in Promoters' Shareholding  
between 1st April, 2014 and 31st March, 2015

Date wise increase/decrease in promoters shareholding during the 

year specifying the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.)
At the end of the year

iv) Share Holding Patern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl 
No. For Each of the Top Ten Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 1st April, 2014)

Cumulaive Shareholding during the 
year (As on 31st March, 2015)

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

1. Winin Financial Consultants Private Limited
At the beginning of the year  73,434 1.6278  73,434  1.6278 

Date wise increase/decrease in  Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.) :

 -    -    -    -   

At the end of the year  73,434  1.6278 

2. S N Rajan

At the beginning of the year  24,965 0.5534  24,965  0.5534 

Date wise increase/decrease in  Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.) :

4-4-2014 Market Sale  473 0.0105  24,492  0.5429 

23-5-2014 Market Sale  2,732 0.0606  21,760  0.4823 

30-5-2014 Market Sale  1,000 0.0221  20,760  0.4602 

6-6-2014 Market Sale  651 0.0144  20,109  0.4458 

13-6-2014 Market Sale  2,000 0.0444  18,109  0.4014 

20-6-2014 Market Sale  1,366 0.0303  16,743  0.3711 

30-6-2014 Market Sale  1,491 0.0330  15,252  0.3381 

04-7-2014 Market Sale  3,041 0.0674  12,211  0.2707 

16-1-2015 Market Sale  5,500 0.1219  6,711  0.1488 

30-1-2015 Market Sale  1,000 0.0222  5,711  0.1266 

06-2-2015 Market Sale  400 0.0089  5,311  0.1177 

13-2-2015 Market Sale  1,576 0.0349  3,735  0.0828 

06-3-2015 Market Sale  1,466 0.0325  2,269  0.0503 

20-3-2015 Market Sale  400 0.0089  1,869  0.0414 

At the end of the year  1,869  0.0414 
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Sl 
No. For Each of the Top Ten Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 1st April, 2014)

Cumulaive Shareholding during the 
year (As on 31st March, 2015)

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

3. Bharat Jayanilal Patel
At the beginning of the year  22,863 0.5068  22,863  0.5068 

Date wise increase/decrease in  Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.) :

11-7-2014 Market Sale  5,000 0.1108  17,863  0.3960 

21-11-2014 Market Sale  17,863 0.3960  -    -   

At the end of the year  -    -   

4. Meenaz Kassam
At the beginning of the year  16,938 0.3755  16,938  0.3755 

Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.) :

 -    -    -    -   

At the end of the year  16,938  0.3755 

5. Minal Bharat Patel
At the beginning of the year  15,954 0.3536  15,954  0.3536 

Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.) :

11-7-2014 Market Purchase  3,329 0.0738  19,283  0.4274 

21-11-2014 Market Purchase  17,863 0.3960  37,146  0.8234 

At the end of the year  37,146  0.8234 

6. Venkatu Srinivasan
At the beginning of the year  13,383 0.2967  13,383  0.2967 

Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.) :

4-4-2014 Market Sale  703 0.0156  12,680  0.2811 

30-5-2014 Market Sale  1,000 0.0222  11,680  0.2589 

18-7-2014 Market Sale  650 0.0144  11,030  0.2445 

25-7-2014 Market Sale  153 0.0034  10,877  0.2411 

1-8-2014 Market Sale  500 0.0111  10,377  0.2300 

19-9-2014 Market Sale  1,600 0.0354  8,777  0.1946 

21-11-2014 Market Sale  500 0.0111  8,277  0.1835 

28-11-2014 Market Sale  41 0.0009  8,236  0.1826 

02-1-2015 Market Purchase  500 0.0111  8,736  0.1937 

06-2-2015 Market Sale  500 0.0111  8,236  0.1826 

06-3-2015 Market Sale  300 0.0067  7,936  0.1759 

13-3-2015 Market Sale  44 0.0010  7,892  0.1749 

At the end of the year  7,892  0.1749 
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Sl 
No. For Each of the Top Ten Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 1st April, 2014)

Cumulaive Shareholding during the 
year (As on 31st March, 2015)

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

7 Amrit India Value Fund Limited
At the beginning of the year  13,168 0.2919  13,168  0.2919 

Date wise increase/decrease in  Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ bonus/sweat equity etc.):

 -    -    -    -   

At the end of the year  13,168  0.2919 

8 D Kannan

At the beginning of the year  8,595 0.1905  8,595  0.1905 

Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.) :

13-6-2014 Market Sale  1,000 0.0221  7,595  0.1684 

31-12-2014 Market Sale  1,100 0.0244  6,495  0.1440 

16-1-2015 Market Sale  693 0.0154  5,802  0.1286 

23-1-2015 Market Sale  2,787 0.0618  3,015  0.0668 

6-2-2015 Market Sale  3,015 0.0668  -    -   

At the end of the year  -    -   

9 Sanjay Natvarlal Shah 
At the beginning of the year  8,552 0.1896  8,552  0.1896 

Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.) :

23-5-2014 Market Purchase  1,500 0.0333  10,052  0.2229 

30-5-2014 Market Sale  1,000 0.0222  9,052  0.2007 

6-6-2014 Market Sale  438 0.0096  8,614  0.1909 

At the end of the year  8,614 0.1909

10 Master Pratham Lodha
At the beginning of the year  7,200 0.1596  7,200  0.1596 

Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.) :

30-9-2014 Market Sale  3,700 0.0820  3,500  0.0776 

28-11-2014 Market Sale  3,500 0.0776  -    -   

At the end of the year  -    -   

11 Rajasthan Global Securiies Limited
At the beginning of the year  -    -    -    -   

Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.) :

23-1-2015 Market Purchase  6,001 0.1330  6,001  0.1330 

30-1-2015 Market Purchase  3,555 0.0788  9,556  0.2118 

06-2-2015 Market Purchase  112 0.0025  9,668  0.2143 

13-2-2015 Market Purchase  1,440 0.0319  11,108  0.2462 

20-2-2015 Market Purchase  729 0.0162  11,837  0.2624 

27-3-2015 Market Purchase  129 0.0028  11,966  0.2652 

At the end of the year  11,966  0.2652 
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Sl 
No. For Each of the Top Ten Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 1st April, 2014)

Cumulaive Shareholding during the 
year (As on 31st March, 2015)

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

12 Bharat Kunverji Kenia
At the beginning of the year  -   -  -    -   

Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.) :

6-3-2015 Market Purchase  9,000 0.1995  9,000  0.1995 

At the end of the year  9,000  0.1995 

13 Mohan Lall Golechha
At the beginning of the year  6,505  0.1442  6,505  0.1442 

Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.) :

4-4-2014 Market Sale  2 -  6,503  0.1442 

11-4-2014 Market Purchase  101 0.0022  6,604  0.1464 

18-4-2014 Market Sale  151 0.0034  6,453  0.1430 

25-4-2014 Market Purchase  255 0.0057  6,708  0.1487 

02-5-2014 Market Purchase  259 0.0057  6,967  0.1544 

09-5-2014 Market Sale  361 0.0080  6,606  0.1464 

16-5-2014 Market Sale  337 0.0074  6,269  0.1390 

23-5-2014 Market Purchase  698 0.0154  6,967  0.1544 

30-5-2014 Market Purchase  151 0.0033  7,118  0.1578 

06-6-2014 Market Sale  759 0.0168  6,359  0.1410 

13-6-2014 Market Sale  975 0.0217  5,384  0.1193 

20-6-2014 Market Sale  185 0.0041  5,199  0.1152 

30-6-2014 Market Purchase  387 0.0086  5,586  0.1238 

04-7-2014 Market Sale  988 0.0219  4,598  0.1019 

11-7-2014 Market Purchase  428 0.0095  5,026  0.1114 

18-7-2014 Market Purchase  1,809 0.0401  6,835  0.1515 

25-7-2014 Market Purchase  1,224 0.0271  8,059  0.1786 

1-8-2014 Market Sale  648 0.0143  7,411  0.1643 

8-8-2014 Market Purchase  1,151 0.0255  8,562  0.1898 

14-8-2014 Market Purchase  23 0.0005  8,585  0.1903 

22-8-2014 Market Purchase  76 0.0017  8,661  0.1920 

05-9-2014 Market Purchase  62 0.0014  8,723  0.1934 

12-9-2014 Market Sale  416 0.0093  8,307  0.1841 

19-9-2014 Market Sale  100 0.0022  8,207  0.1819 

30-9-2014 Market Purchase  2,063 0.0458  10,270  0.2277 

17-10-2014 Market Purchase  4 0.0001  10,274  0.2278 
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Sl 
No. For Each of the Top Ten Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 1st April, 2014)

Cumulaive Shareholding during the 
year (As on 31st March, 2015)

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

24-10-2014 Market Purchase  98 0.0021  10,372  0.2299 

31-10-2014 Market Sale  20 0.0004  10,352  0.2295 

7-11-2014 Market Sale  1,909 0.0423  8,443  0.1872 

14-11-2014 Market Sale  248 0.0055  8,195  0.1817 

21-11-2014 Market Purchase  570 0.0126  8,765  0.1943 

28-11-2014 Market Purchase  101 0.0022  8,866  0.1965 

5-12-2014 Market Purchase  400 0.0089  9,266  0.2054 

12-12-2014 Market Purchase  707 0.0157  9,973  0.2211 

19-12-2014 Market Sale  1,658 0.0368  8,315  0.1843 

31-12-2014 Market Sale  351 0.0078  7,964  0.1765 

9-1-2015 Market Sale  646 0.0143  7,318  0.1622 

16-1-2015 Market Purchase  98 0.0022  7,416  0.1644 

6-2-2015 Market Purchase  339 0.0075  7,755  0.1719 

13-2-2015 Market Purchase  631 0.0140  8,386  0.1859 

20-2-2015 Market Sale  132 0.0029  8,254  0.1830 

27-2-2015 Market Purchase  520 0.0115  8,774  0.1945 

06-3-2015 Market Sale  4,211 0.0934  4,563  0.1011 

13-3-2015 Market Purchase  445 0.0099  5,008  0.1110 

20-3-2015 Market Purchase  881 0.0195  5,889  0.1305 

27-3-2015 Market Purchase  983 0.0218  6,872  0.1523 

31-3-2015 Market Purchase  826 0.0183  7,698  0.1706 

At the end of the year  7,698  0.1706 

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel :

Sl 
No. For Each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 1st April, 2014)

Cumulaive Shareholding during the 
year (As on 31st March, 2015)

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

1 Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing Director
At the beginning of the year  3,43,840 7.6218  3,43,840 7.6218

Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

 -    -    -    -   

At the end of the year  3,43,840 7.6218  3,43,840 7.6218

2 Mrs. Malai Kanoria, Non-Execuive Director **
At the beginning of the year  2,85,150 6.3209  2,85,150 6.3209

Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

 -    -    -    -   

At the end of the year  2,85,150 6.3209  2,85,150 6.3209
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Sl 
No. For Each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 1st April, 2014)

Cumulaive Shareholding during the 
year (As on 31st March, 2015)

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

3 Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal, Wholeime Director
At the beginning of the year  300 0.0067  300 0.0067

Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

 -    -    -    -   

At the end of the year  300 0.0067  300 0.0067

4 Mr. Deo Kishan Mohta, President (Corporate Afairs) and Secretary, Chief Financial Oicer *
At the beginning of the year  15 0.0003  15 0.0003

Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):                           

 -    -    -   -

At the end of the year  15 0.0003  15 0.0003

5 Mr. Madhup Kumar Patni, Chief Financial Oicer**
At the beginning of the year  -    -    -    -   

Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding during the 

year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

17-06-2014 Market Purchase  10 0.0002  10 0.0002

At the end of the year  10 0.0002  10 0.0002

6 Mr. Aditya Banerjee, Company Secretary **
At the beginning of the year  -    -    -    -   

Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding during the 

year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) : 

10-06-2014 Market Purchase  10 0.0002  10 0.0002

At the end of the year  10 0.0002  10 0.0002

 Note : Other Directors on the Board are not holding any share of the Company.
 * Relinquished the posiion of Company Secretary and Chief Financial Oicer w.e.f. 9th May, 2014
 ** Appointed w.e.f. 9th May, 2014 

V INDEBTEDNESS

  Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment : 

Secured Loans  
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total

Indebtedness at the beginning of the inancial 
year (1st April, 2014)
i) Principal Amount  1,323.85  -    -    1,323.85 

ii) Interest due but not paid  -    -    -    -   

iii) Interest accrued but not due  0.14  -    -    0.14 

Total (i+ii+iii)  1,323.99  -    -    1,323.99 
Change in Indebtedness during the inancial year

Addiion  113.76  -    -    113.76 

Reducion  15.00  -    -    15.00 

Net Change  98.76  -    -    98.76 
Indebtedness at the end of the inancial year 
(31st March, 2015)
i) Principal Amount  1,422.55  -    -    1,422.55 

ii) Interest due but not paid  -    -    -    -   

iii) Interest accrued but not due  0.20  -    -    0.20 

Total (i+ii+iii)  1,422.75  -    -    1,422.75 

(` In Lakhs)
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VI Remuneraion of directors and key managerial personnel
 A Remuneraion to managing director, wholeime directors and/or Manager : 

Sl.
No.

Pariculars of Remuneraion Name of MD/WTD/Manager
Mr. Harsh Vardhan 

Kanoria, Chairman and 
Managing Director, CEO

Mr. Nawal 
Kishore Kejriwal, 

Wholeime Director

Total  
Amount

1 Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in Secion 17(1) of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961

27.00 21.14 48.14

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2.65 2.21 4.86

(c) Proits in lieu of salary under 
secion 17(3) of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961

 -    -    -   

2 Stock Opion  -    -    -   

3 Sweat Equity  -    -    -   

4 Commission

- as % of Proit 153.00 15.00 168.00

5 Others, please specify
(Reiral Beneits) 2.00 2.22 4.22

Total (A) 184.65 40.57 225.22

Ceiling as per the Act ` 370.44 (being 10% of the net proits of the Company calculated as 
per Secion 198 of the Companies Act, 2013)

B. Remuneraion to other directors :

Sl. 
No.

Pariculars of 
Remuneraion

Name of the Directors Total 
Amount

Mr. Parag 
Keshar 

Bhatacharjee

Mr. Padam 
Kumar Khaitan

Mr. Sushil 
Dhandhania

Mr. Navin 
Nayar

Mrs. Malai 
Kanoria

1. Independent Directors

Fee for atending board/ 
commitee meeings

 0.20  0.15  0.20  0.20 -  0.75

Commission  4.00  4.00  4.00  4.00 -  16.00 

 Others, please specify  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total (1)  4.20  4.15  4.20  4.20 -  16.75 

2. Other non-execuive 
Directors

Fee for atending board/ 
commitee meeings

- - - -  0.10 0.10

Commission - - - -  4.00 4.00

 Others, please specify - - -  -   -

Total (2) - - - -  4.10 4.10

Total (B) = (1 + 2) 4.20 4.15 4.20 4.20 4.10 20.85

Total Managerial 

Remuneraion (A + B)
- - - - - 246.07

Overall Ceiling as per 

the Act

` 407.49 (being 11% of the net proits of the Company calculated as per 
Secion 198 of the Companies Act, 2013)

(` In Lakhs)
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C. Remuneraion to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Sl.
No.

Pariculars of Remuneraion

Name of key managerial personnel Total 
Amount Mr. Deo 

Kishan Mohta, 
President 

(Corporate 
Afairs) and 
Secretary, 

Chief Financial 
Oicer *

Mr. Madhup 
Kumar Patni, 

Chief Financial 
Oicer **

Mr. Aditya 
Banerjee, 
Company 

Secretary **

1 Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in secion 17(1) of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961

25.68 18.01 9.23 52.92

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

0.70 0.86 0.40 1.96

(c) Proits in lieu of salary under 
secion 17(3) of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961

 -    -    -    -   

2 Stock Opion  -    -    -    -   

3 Sweat Equity  -    -    -    -   

4 Commission  -    -    -    -   

5 Others, please specify
(Reiral Beneits) 2.38 2.04 1.54 5.96

Total 28.76 20.91 11.17 60.84

 * Relinquished the posiion of Company Secretary and Chief Financial Oicer w.e.f. 9th May, 2014
 ** Appointed w.e.f. 9th May, 2014         

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES :

Type Secion of the 
Companies 
Act, 2013

Brief 
Descripion

Details of 
Penalty/ 

Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority 
[RD/NCLT/

COURT]

Appeal 
made, if 
any (give 
Details)

A. COMPANY

None
Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

None
Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

None
Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

ANNEXURE II TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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Informaion under Secion 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 :

A. Conservaion of Energy

(i) The steps taken or impact on 

conservaion of energy
Following steps taken for conservaion of energy during the year have 
reduced consumpion of energy:

(i) Modiicaion of power drive system in convenional spinning 
frames;

(ii) Replacement of old tube lights with energy saving LED lamps;

(iii) Installaion of variable voltage and variable frequency drive in 
machine.

(ii) The steps taken by the company for 
uilising alternate sources of energy

Following steps are taken by the Company for uilising alternate sources 
of energy:

(i) The Company is making maximum use of natural lighing during 
day ime and gradually inducing safelux system to get the factory 
premises illuminated;

(ii) Introducion of solar power system is under technical study.

(iii) The capital investment on energy 

conservaion equipments
No capital investment on energy conservaion equipment was made 
during the year under review. The aforesaid electrical items procured 
during the year were consumable in nature. 

B. Technology Absorpion

(i) The eforts made towards technology 
absorpion

Technology absorpion is a coninuous process. The Company keeps 
track of new machines and upgrade its plant and machinery with 
the latest available technology.

(ii) The beneits derived like product 
improvement, cost reducion, product 
development or import subsituion

Improved producivity and automaion processes. Cost reducion 
has however, been partly ofset by the increase in cost of other 
inputs.

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported 
during the last three years reckoned 

from the beginning of the inancial year)-

No technology has been imported during the last three years. 

a) the details of technology imported

b) the year of import

c) whether the technology been fully 
absorbed

d) if not fully absorbed, areas where 
absorpion has not taken place, and 
the reasons thereof and

(iv) the expenditure incurred on research  
and development :

The Company does not have in-house research and development 

facility and therefore no expenditure has been incurred in this 
regard.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo :                
 (i) Foreign exchange earned in terms of actual inlow : ` 12,911.83

 (ii) Foreign exchange outgo in terms of actual ouflow : ` 2,217.70

For and on behalf of the Board
HARSH VARDHAN KANORIA

Chairman and Managing Director,

Chief Execuive Oicer
Kolkata, 19th May, 2015  DIN : 00060259

ANNEXURE III TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) aciviies containing pariculars given in Annexure as per Secion 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 : 

1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects 
or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to 
the CSR policy and projects or programs

In accordance with the Company’s CSR policy the CSR aciviies were undertaken by 
making contribuion to charitable Trusts for promoing educaion and seing up old 
age homes during the year 2014-15.

The CSR Policy is available on Company website (www.groupcheviot.net).

2. The Composiion of the CSR Commitee The members of the CSR Commitee consist of:
1. Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria

(Chairman and Managing Director) – Chairman

2. Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan

(Independent Director) – Member

3. Mr. Sushil Dhandhania

(Independent Director) – Member

3. Average net proit of the Company for last three inancial years ` 3,732.05

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 
above)

` 74.64

5. Details of CSR spent during the inancial year
(a) Total amount to be spent for the inancial year : ` 74.64

(b) Amount unspent, if any: NIL

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the inancial year is 
detailed below :

ANNEXURE IV TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(` in Lakhs)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

S.

No.

CSR Project 

or acivity 
ideniied

Sector in which the 

project is covered 

(clause no. of 
Schedule VII to the 

Companies Act, 

2013, as amended)

Projects or programs

(1) Local area or other

(2) Specify the State and district 
where projects or programs was 

undertaken

Amount 

outlay 

(budget) 

project or 

programs-

wise

Amount spent on the 

projects or programs 

Sub-heads: (1) Direct 

expenditure on projects or 
programs (2) Overheads:

Cumulaive 
expenditure up 
to the reporing 
period

Amount spent: 

Direct or through 

implemening 
agency

5a. For 

promoing 
educaion

Cl. (ii)

Educaion
1. Other

2. Harni, Vadodara, Gujarat, India

65.00 65.00 * 65.00 Through 

implemening 
agency : Jan Priya 

Trust

5b. For seing 
up old age 

home

Cl. (iii)

Seing up old age 
home

1. Other

2. Malinibheel, Tarapur, Silchar, 

Assam, India

10.00 10.00 * 10.00 Through 

implemening 
agency : Bharat 

Sevashram Sangha

                                                               Total 75.00 75.00 75.00

HARSH VARDHAN KANORIA

Chairman and Managing Director,

Chief Execuive Oicer
Chairman – CSR Commitee

6. In case the Company has failed to spend the 2% of the average net proit of 
the last 3 inancial years or any part thereof, reasons for not spending the 
amount in its Board Report :

Not applicable

7. A responsibility statement by the CSR Commitee that the implementaion 
and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objecives and 
Policy of the Company :

The CSR commitee conirms that the implementaion and monitoring of CSR Policy is 
in compliance with the CSR objecives and Policy of the Company.

* Represents Direct expenditure on projects or programs; Overheads Nil.
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ANNEXURE V TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH 
RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

(i) The raio of the remuneraion of each director to the median remuneraion of the employees of the Company for the inancial year :
Directors Raio
Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing Director, Chief Execuive Oicer 139:1

Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal, Wholeime Director 31:1

Mr. Parag Keshar Bhatacharjee, Independent Director 3:1

Mr. Navin Nayar, Independent Director 3:1

Mr. Sushil Dhandhania, Independent Director 3:1

Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan, Independent Director 3:1

Mrs. Malai Kanoria, Non Execuive Director #

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneraion of each director, chief inancial oicer, chief execuive oicer, company secretary in the inancial year :
Directors / Key Managerial Personnel % Increase / (Decrease)
Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing Director, Chief Execuive Oicer (5)

Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal, Wholeime Director (38)

Mr. Parag Keshar Bhatacharjee, Independent Director NIL

Mr. Navin Nayar, Independent Director NIL

Mr. Sushil Dhandhania, Independent Director NIL

Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan, Independent Director NIL

Mrs. Malai Kanoria, Non Execuive Director #

Mr. Deo Kishan Mohta, President (Corporate Afairs) & Secretary, Chief Financial Oicer * (8)

Mr. Madhup Kumar Patni, Chief Financial Oicer ** (3)

Mr. Aditya Banerjee, Company Secretary ** 17

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneraion of employees in the inancial year: 5

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company : (as on 31st March, 2015) 4235 employees

(v) The explanaion on the relaionship between average increase in remuneraion and company performance :
The Company's operaing proits were lower by 30%. However, proit ater tax increased by 29% mainly due to ad hoc increase in other income as explained in the 
report. In the wake of diicult market condiions, the average increase in remuneraion of all employees ater giving efect of changes in dearness allowance and 
annual increment considering inlaion and performance of respecive employees was around 2%. 

(vi) Comparison of the remuneraion of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company :
Aggregate remuneraion of all key managerial personnel (KMPs) in FY 2014-15 ` 286.06

Proit before Tax (PBT) in FY 2014-15 ` 4,231.56

Remuneraion of KMPs (as % of overall performance of the Company) 6.76

(vii) Variaions in the market capitalisaion of the company, price earnings raio as at the closing date of the current inancial year and previous inancial year and 
percentage increase over or decrease in the market quotaions of the shares of the company in comparison to the rate at which the company came out with 
the last public ofer :

As at 31st March, 2015 As at 31st March, 2014 Variaion % Variaion
Market Capitalisaion ` 15,252.54 ` 14,027.73 ` 1,224.81 8.73

Price Earnings Raio 4.41 5.23 (0.82) (15.68)

As at 31st March, 2015 Last IPO on 24th January, 

1995

Bonus Issue adjustment

^

% Variaion

Market Price (In `)  338.10  70.00 47 624.50

^ Adjusted for 2 : 1 bonus issue in 23rd September, 2006.

(` in Lakhs)
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ANNEXURE V TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)

(viii) Average percenile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last inancial year and its comparison with 
the percenile increase in the managerial remuneraion and jusiicaion thereof and point out if there are any excepional circumstances for increase in the 
managerial remuneraion :
The average percenile increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel of the Company in the last inancial year 2014-15 
was around 2% taking into consideraion annual increment based on performance of respecive employees and impact of dearness allowance for workers. 
Remuneraion to managerial personnel have decreased by around 13% mainly on account of decrease in commission payable to managerial personnel as decided 
by the Board within the overall ceiling of 10% of the net proit of the Company computed under Secion 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ix) Comparison of each remuneraion of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company :
Remuneraion Proit Before Tax (PBT) % of PBT

Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing Director, 

Chief Execuive Oicer
 ` 184.65  ` 4,231.56 4.36%

Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal, Wholeime Director ` 40.57 0.96%
Mr. Deo Kishan Mohta, President (Corporate Afairs) & Secretary, 
Chief Financial Oicer *

` 28.76 0.68%

Mr. Madhup Kumar Patni, Chief Financial Oicer ** ` 20.91 0.50%
Mr. Aditya Banerjee, Company Secretary ** ` 11.17 0.26%

(x) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneraion availed by the directors : 
Commission is the variable component of remuneraion availed by the directors. Net proit for the year is the key parameter in determining the amount of 
commission payable to each director. 

(xi) The raio of the remuneraion of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive remuneraion in excess of the highest 
paid director during the year :
No employee received remuneraion in excess of the highest paid director, being the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

(xii) Airmaion that the remuneraion is as per the remuneraion policy of the Company :
The Company airms that the remuneraion paid to employees, who are covered under Remuneraion Policy is  in accordance with the Remuneraion Policy of 
the Company.

# Since appointment was made during the year, the informaion is not comparable. 
* The posiions of Company Secretary and Chief Financial Oicer were relinquished w.e.f. 9th May, 2014.
** Appointed w.e.f. 9th May, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(2) AND 5(3) 
OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

Name Designaion Remuneraion 
Received *          

Nature of 
emloyment 

whether 

contractual 

or otherwise

Qualiicaions 
and Experience 

Date of 
commencement 

of employment

Age

(Years)

Last 

employment 

held before 
joining the 

Company 

Name of 
director of 

the Company 

who is a 

relaive
Mr. Harsh 

Vardhan Kanoria

Chairman and 

Managing 

Director, Chief 
Execuive 

Oicer

` 184.65 Contractual 

basis

B. Com.,                                

41 Years

1st April, 1981 59 Bengal Tea and 

Industries Ltd., 

Wholeime 
Director 

(3 Years)

Mrs. Malai 
Kanoria,

Non 

Execuive 
Director 

* Remuneraion includes salary, allowances, Company’s contribuion to provident fund, commission on net proits, medical 
insurance premium and value of certain perquisites evaluated on the basis of Income Tax Act and Rules.

For and on behalf of the Board
HARSH VARDHAN KANORIA

Chairman and Managing Director,

Chief Execuive Oicer
Kolkata, 19th May, 2015  DIN : 00060259

(` in Lakhs)
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Form No. MR – 3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
[Pursuant to Secion 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneraion of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To, 

The Members, 

CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate pracices by M/s CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED (hereinater called the Company). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluaing the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon. 
Based on our veriicaion of the Company’s  books, papers, minute books, forms and returns iled and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the informaion provided by the Company, its oicers, agents and authorised 
representaives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the inancial year ended on 31st March, 2015 (‘the Audit Period’) complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 

to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporing made hereinater: 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns iled and other records maintained by the Company 
for the inancial year ended on 31st March, 2015 according to the provisions of: 
i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

ii) The Securiies Contracts (Regulaion) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder;
iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulaions and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulaions made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;                                                                                                                   
v) The following Regulaions and Guidelines prescribed under the Securiies and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 :- 
 (a) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Substanial Acquisiion of Shares and Takeovers) Regulaions, 2011; 
 (b) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Prohibiion of Insider Trading) Regulaions, 1992; 
 (c) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulaions, 2009; 

(Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period);

 (d) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Opion Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period);

 (e) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lising of Debt Securiies) Regulaions, 2008; (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the audit period);

 (f) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulaions, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period);

 (g) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Delising of Equity Shares) Regulaions, 2009; (Not Applicable to 
the Company during the audit period); and

 (h) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securiies) Regulaions, 1998; (Not Applicable to the 
Company during the audit period).                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

vi) The following laws speciically applicable to the Company in addiion to the general laws :-
 (a) The Jute Manufactures Cess Act, 1983 and the rules made thereunder;
 (b) Jute & Jute Texile Control Orders issued under Essenial Commodiies Act, 1955;
 (c) Indian Boilers Act, 1963 and the rules made thereunder;

 (d) The Special Economic Zones Act, 2005 and the rules made thereunder. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following : 
(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Insitute of Company Secretaries of India as applicable; (Not Applicable to the 

Company during the audit period);              

ii)  The Lising Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

ANNEXURE VI TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
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During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulaions, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. menioned above except inimaion of closure of Trading Windows to BSE Limited.
We further report that :
The Board of directors of the Company is duly consituted with proper balance of execuive directors, non-execuive 
directors and independent directors. The changes in the composiion of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act;
Adequate noice is given to all directors to schedule the Board meeings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informaion and clariicaions on the 
agenda items before the meeing and for meaningful paricipaion at the meeing;
Majority decision is carried through while the dissening members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operaions of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulaions and guidelines. 
This Report is to be read with our leter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure-A” and forms an integral part of this 
Report.

For MR & Associates

Company Secretaries 

[M  R  Goenka]
Partner

Place : Kolkata  FCS No. : 4515

Date : 13th May, 2015  C P No. : 2551

ANNEXURE VI TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)

“ANNEXURE – A”
To, 

The Members, 

CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this leter.
1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
2. We have followed the Audit pracices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The veriicaion was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are relected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and pracices we followed, provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not veriied the correctness and appropriateness of inancial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representaion about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulaions and happening of events etc.
5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulaions and standards is the 

responsibility of the management. Our examinaion was limited to the veriicaion of procedures on test basis.
6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the eicacy or 

efeciveness with which the management has conducted the afairs of the Company.

For MR & Associates

Company Secretaries 

[M  R  Goenka]
Partner

Place : Kolkata  FCS No. : 4515

Date : 13th May, 2015  C P No. : 2551
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying inancial statements of Cheviot Company Limited which comprise the Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March, 2015, the Statement of Proit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date and a 
summary of signiicant accouning policies and other explanatory informaion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of directors is responsible for the maters stated in Secion 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparaion of these inancial statements that give a true and fair view of the inancial posiion, 
inancial performance and cash lows of the Company in accordance with the accouning principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Accouning Standards speciied under Secion 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accouning records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for prevening and detecing frauds and 
other irregulariies; selecion and applicaion of appropriate accouning policies; making judgements and esimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementaion and maintenance of adequate internal inancial controls, 
that were operaing efecively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accouning records, relevant to 
the preparaion and presentaion of the inancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these inancial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accouning and audiing standards and maters which are 
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audiing speciied under Secion 143(10) of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the inancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the inancial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the inancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal inancial control relevant to the Company’s preparaion of the inancial statements that give a true and 
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluaing 
the appropriateness of the accouning policies used and the reasonableness of the accouning esimates made by the 
Company’s directors, as well as evaluaing the overall presentaion of the inancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suicient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the inancial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informaion and according to the explanaions given to us, the aforesaid inancial 
statements give the informaion required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accouning principles generally accepted in India:

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of afairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2015;

b) in the case of the Statement of Proit and Loss, of the proit for the year ended on that date; and

c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash lows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 issued by the Central Government under Secion 143(11) 
of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the maters speciied in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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2. As required by Secion 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the informaion and explanaions which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examinaion of those books;

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Proit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid inancial statements comply with the Accouning Standards speciied under Secion 
133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; 

 (e) On the basis of the writen representaions received from the directors as on 31st March, 2015 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualiied as on 31st March, 2015 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Secion 164 (2) of the Act;

 (f) With respect to the other maters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informaion and according to 
the explanaions given to us : 

  (i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending liigaions on its inancial posiion in its inancial statements 
– Refer Note no. 49.b to the inancial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015;

  (ii) There were no material foreseeable losses on the long term contracts including derivaive contracts and 
as such the Company was not required to make any provision for the same under the applicable law or 
accouning standards;

  (iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Educaion and 
Protecion Fund by the Company.

For Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants
  Registraion No.:302023E
P-21/22, Radhabazar Street, CA P. K. Jain
Kolkata - 700 001 Partner 

Dated the 19th day of May, 2015  Membership No. 52018

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (Contd.)
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1. a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full pariculars including quanitaive details and locaion of 
the ixed assets. 

 b) There is a regular program of physical veriicaion by the management, which in our opinion is reasonable, having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of ixed assets. No material discrepancies have been noiced in 
respect of the assets physically veriied during the year.

2. a)  Inventories have been physically veriied during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of 
veriicaion is reasonable. 

 b)  The procedures of physical veriicaion of stocks followed by the management are adequate in relaion to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business.

 c)  The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noiced on veriicaion between the 
physical stocks and book records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

3. The Company has not granted any loans during the year to the paries covered in the register maintained under 
Secion 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses (iii) (a) & (b) are not applicable to the Company.

4. In our opinion, and according to the informaion and explanaions given to us, there is an adequate internal control 
system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase of inventory 
and ixed assets and for the sale of goods. During the course of our audit, no major weakness was noiced in the 
internal control system. 

5. The company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year. 

6. On the basis of records produced, we are of the opinion that, prima facie, the cost records and accounts prescribed by 
the Central Government under Secion 148 (1) of the Act have been maintained by the Company. However, we are not 
required to carry out and have not carried out any detailed examinaion of such accounts and records. 

7. a)  According to the informaion and explanaions given to us and the records examined by us, the Company is 
regular in deposiing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor Educaion and Protecion 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Value Added Tax, 
Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authoriies and there are no undisputed statutory dues 
outstanding as at 31st March, 2015, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 b) According to the records of the Company, the following dues are not deposited on account of disputes pending at 
various forums

Name of the Statute Nature of dues Amount Year to which 

amount relates

Forum where dispute 

is pending

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax    0.22 1993-94 Revision Level

   0.10 2006-07 Revision Level

   0.39 2008-09 Revision Level

   0.18 2010-11 Assessing Oicer
  15.88 2011-12 Revision Level

Income Tax Act Income Tax   59.25 2002-03 Tribunal Level

120.27 2008-09 Appeal Level

   6.36 2009-10 Tribunal Level

  36.24 2010-11 Appeal Level

  20.38 2011-12 Appeal Level

Wealth Tax Act Wealth Tax 115.13 2007-08 Appeal Level

107.62 2008-09 Appeal Level

TOTAL : 482.02

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(` in Lakhs)
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 c) According to the informaion and explanaions given to us and the records examined by us, the amount required 
to be transferred to investor educaion and protecion fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Act 
and the rules made thereunder has been transferred to such fund within ime.

8. The Company has not incurred cash loss in the current year and in the immediately preceding inancial year and there 
are no accumulated losses in the Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2015. 

9. Based on the informaion and explanaions given to us, the Company has not defaulted during the year in repayment 
of dues to any inancial insituions or banks. 

10. According to the informaion and explanaions received, the Company has not given any guarantees for loans taken by 
others from bank or inancial insituions. 

11. According to the informaion and explanaions received, the term loan was applied for the purpose for which the loan 
was obtained. 

12. As per the informaion and explanaions given to us, no fraud on or by the Company has been noiced during the year. 

For Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants
  Registraion No.:302023E
P-21/22, Radhabazar Street, CA P. K. Jain
Kolkata - 700 001 Partner 

Dated the 19th day of May, 2015  Membership No. 52018

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (Contd.)
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Pariculars Note  As at  
 31st March, 2015 

 As at  
 31st March, 2014

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 Shareholders' funds 
 Share capital 2  451.48  451.48 

 Reserves and surplus 3  35,243.36  32,817.67 

 35,694.84  33,269.15 

 Non-current liabiliies 
 Long-term borrowings 4  -    15.00 

 Deferred tax liabiliies (net) 5  108.11  121.71 

 Other long-term liabiliies 6  10.36  40.87 

 118.47  177.58 

 Current liabiliies 
 Short-term borrowings 7  1,402.55  1,288.85 

 Trade payables 8  814.15  923.67 

 Other current liabiliies 9  278.43  232.28 

 Short-term provisions 10  1,447.79  1,466.92 

 3,942.92  3,911.72 

TOTAL  39,756.23  37,358.45 

 ASSETS 

 Non-current assets 
 Fixed assets 
      Tangible assets 11  11,101.65  11,564.69 

      Intangible assets 11  110.13  109.90 

      Capital work-in-progress  6.17  31.22 

 11,217.95  11,705.81 

 Non-current investments 12  16,863.29  13,336.60 

 Long-term loans and advances 13  60.98  120.34 

 Other non-current assets 14  332.59  570.24 

 28,474.81  25,732.99 

 Current assets 
 Current investments 15  2,480.65  2,600.00 

 Inventories 16  4,525.86  4,879.69 

 Trade receivables 17  2,463.76  2,704.94 

 Cash and bank balances 18  751.45  815.55 

 Short-term loans and advances 19  612.77  303.67 

 Other current assets 20  446.93  321.61 

 11,281.42  11,625.46 

TOTAL  39,756.23  37,358.45 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2015
(` in Lakhs)

The accompanying notes 1 to 52 are an integral part of these inancial statements

For and on behalf of the Board 
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 

Chairman and Managing Director,  

Chief Execuive Oicer 
DIN : 00060259 CA Madhup Kumar Patni

Chief Financial Oicer 

CS Aditya Banerjee 
Company Secretary

As per our report atached
For Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants 
Registraion No. : 302023E
CA P. K. Jain
Partner 
Membership No. 52018
Dated : 19th day of May, 2015

 Nawal Kishore Kejriwal  Navin Nayar
 Wholeime Director  Director
 DIN : 00060314  DIN : 00136057
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

Pariculars Note  For the year ended                  

31st March, 2015 

For the year ended                  

31st March, 2014

Revenue from operaions (gross) 21  26,846.05  28,004.20 

Less : Jute manufacturing cess  146.52  161.07 

Revenue from operaions (net)  26,699.53  27,843.13 

Other income 22  2,166.73  914.91 

Total revenue  28,866.26  28,758.04 

Expenses :
Cost of materials consumed 23  13,306.98  13,771.85 

Changes in inventories of inished goods and work-in-progress 24  209.26  (639.45)

Employee beneits expenses 25  4,678.41  5,421.41 

Finance costs 26  86.72  74.18 

Depreciaion and amorisaion expense 27  648.26  573.04 

Other expenses 28  5,802.52  5,832.77 

Total expenses  24,732.15  25,033.80 

Proit before excepional item and tax  4,134.11  3,724.24 

Excepional items :
Indirect taxes for earlier years  -    94.87 

Provision against indirect taxes refundable writen back  97.45  -   

Proit before tax  4,231.56  3,819.11 

Tax expenses :
Current tax  749.00  1,042.00 

Tax for earlier years (net)  1.10  9.36 

Deferred tax  23.37  87.37 

Proit for the year  3,458.09  2,680.38 

Earnings per ordinary share (face value of ` 10 each)

Basic & diluted (in `) 29  76.65  59.42 

(` in Lakhs)

The accompanying notes 1 to 52 are an integral part of these inancial statements

For and on behalf of the Board 
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 

Chairman and Managing Director,  

Chief Execuive Oicer 
DIN : 00060259 CA Madhup Kumar Patni

Chief Financial Oicer 

CS Aditya Banerjee 
Company Secretary

As per our report atached
For Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants 
Registraion No. : 302023E
CA P. K. Jain
Partner 
Membership No. 52018
Dated : 19th day of May, 2015

 Nawal Kishore Kejriwal  Navin Nayar
 Wholeime Director  Director
 DIN : 00060314  DIN : 00136057
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
(` in Lakhs)

Pariculars For the year ended  
31st March, 2015

For the year ended  
31st March, 2014

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net proit before tax  4,231.56  3,819.11 

Adjustments for : 

Depreciaion and amorisaion expense  648.26  573.04 

Unrealised foreign exchange diferences loss   13.47  84.36 

Proit on sale of ixed assets (net)  (4.02)  (94.94)

Net gain on sale of investments  (991.33)  (220.26)

Interest income  (473.88)  (398.91)

Dividend income  (561.70)  (3.90)

Diminuion in value of current investments  219.35  -   

Provision for doubful receivables  13.30  -   

Finance costs  86.72  74.18 

Miscellaneous receipts  (4.14)  (1,053.97)  (4.06)  9.51 

Operaing proit before working capital changes  3,177.59  3,828.62 

Adjustments for :  

Trade receivables  205.24  (514.60)

Loans and advances and other assets  (412.30)  66.37 

Inventories  353.83  (528.76)

Trade payables, other liabiliies and provisions  (291.43)  (144.66)  (377.09)  (1,354.08)

Cash generated from operaions  3,032.93  2,474.54 

Direct taxes paid (net of refund)  (712.00)  (1,046.00)

Net cash from operaing aciviies  2,320.93  1,428.54 

 B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of ixed assets (including changes in capital work-in-
progress/advances)  (262.54)  (825.84)

Capital subsidy received  -    53.55 

Sale of ixed assets  18.68  107.18 

Purchase of investments  (9,850.35)  (8,952.77)

Sale of investments  7,214.99  8,300.62 

Decrease in ixed deposits with a maturity more than 90 days  0.31  24.37 

Miscellaneous receipts  3.87  3.80 

Interest received  813.29  382.11 

Dividend received  545.89  3.90 

Net cash used in invesing aciviies  (1,515.86)  (903.08)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Repayment of long-term borrowings  (15.00)  (20.00)

Increase in short term borrowings  113.70  228.59 

Dividend paid  (676.69)  (676.69)

Dividend distribuion tax paid  (115.00)  (115.00)

Finance costs  (81.59)  (74.45)

Net cash used in inancing aciviies  (774.58)  (657.55)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  30.49  (132.09)

Cash and cash equivalents (opening balance)  550.11  683.12 

Efect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  (0.37)  (0.92)

Cash and cash equivalents (closing balance)  580.23  550.11 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015 (Contd.)

Pariculars For the year ended  
31st March, 2015

For the year ended  
31st March, 2014

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement 
1. Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash low statement  

comprise the following balance sheet amounts:  
Cash on hand  7.25  8.08 

Balances with banks 

- in current accounts  572.98  542.03 

Cash and cash equivalents (closing balance)  580.23  550.11 

Add: Fixed deposit account with maturity of over 90 days  100.00 –

Add: Restricted cash 

Fixed deposit accounts (under lien)  0.89  202.64 

Fracional bonus share account  0.44  0.44 

Unpaid dividend accounts  69.89  62.36 

Cash and bank balances (closing balance)  751.45  815.55 

2. The above cash low statement has been prepared under 
'Indirect Method' as set out in the Accouning Standard - 3 
on 'Cash Flow Statement'. 

3. Figures in brackets represent ouflows / deducions. 
4. Previous year's igures have been re-grouped / re-arranged 

wherever necessary to make them comparable. 

(` in Lakhs)

The accompanying notes 1 to 52 are an integral part of these inancial statements

For and on behalf of the Board 
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 

Chairman and Managing Director,  

Chief Execuive Oicer 
DIN : 00060259 CA Madhup Kumar Patni

Chief Financial Oicer 

CS Aditya Banerjee 
Company Secretary

As per our report atached
For Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants 
Registraion No. : 302023E
CA P. K. Jain
Partner 
Membership No. 52018
Dated : 19th day of May, 2015

 Nawal Kishore Kejriwal  Navin Nayar
 Wholeime Director  Director
 DIN : 00060314  DIN : 00136057
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 a. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
  The inancial statements are prepared under the historical cost convenion, except for certain ixed assets which 

have been revalued, on an accrual basis, in accordance with the applicable mandatory Accouning Standards and 
as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The accouning policies, unless speciically stated to 
be otherwise, have been consistently applied by the Company.

 b. FIXED ASSETS 
  i. Fixed assets, other than those revalued, are stated at cost/book value less capital subsidy, accumulated 

depreciaion/amorisaion and impairment losses, if any.
  ii. Cost comprises purchase price, non refundable taxes, duies, freight and incidental expenses related to 

the acquisiion and installaion of the assets as well as inance charges wherever applicable relaing to 
borrowed funds atributable to construcion/acquisiion of ixed assets for the period up to commencement 
of commercial producion/assets put into use.

  iii. Intangible assets comprise of sotware, expected to provide future enduring economic beneits are stated 
at cost less accumulated amorisaion. Cost comprises purchase price and directly atributable expenditure 
on making the asset ready for its intended use. 

  iv. In respect of revalued assets, the diference between writen down value of the assets as on the date of 
revaluaion and the then replacement value is transferred to revaluaion reserve. 

 c. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 
  Depreciaion/amorisaion on the Company's ixed assets has been charged on the following basis: 
  i. On assets added up to 30th November, 1975, on assets pertaining to Falta Special Economic Zone (SEZ) Unit 

and on assets added on and ater 1st April, 1999 except land and building - writen down value method on 
cost / subsituted cost less residual value based on useful lives, as speciied in Schedule II of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

  ii. On assets added from 1st December, 1975 to 31st March, 1999 and on land and building excluding leasehold 
land and assets pertaining to Falta SEZ Unit- straight line method on cost/subsituted cost less residual value 
based on useful lives, as speciied in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

  iii. Cost of leasehold land is being amorised over the period of lease. 
  iv. Depreciaion / impact of disposal on revalued porion is transfered from revaluaion reserve to general 

reserve at year end. 

  v. Sotware is being amorised over a period of ten years under straight line method.   
  vi. Depreciaion on amounts capitalised on account of foreign exchange luctuaion is provided prospecively 

over the residual life of the assets. 
 d. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 
  An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment 

loss is to be charged to the Statement of Proit and Loss in the year in which an asset is ideniied as impaired. 
The impairment loss, if recognised in any accouning period, is reversible if there is any change in the esimate of 
recoverable amount.  

 e. INVESTMENTS 
  Investments are classiied into current and long-term investments. Current investments, except for current 

maturiies of long-term investments, are stated at the lower of cost and fair value. Long-term investments 
are stated at cost less provision, if any, for diminuion other than temporary diminuion in the value of such 
investments.

  Market value of quoted mutual funds is arrived at by considering Net Asset Value (NAV).
 f. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 
  i. Transacions in foreign currency, other than those relaing to ixed assets, are recorded in equivalent rupee 

value at rates exising at the ime at which transacions take place. Year end balances in current assets and 
liabiliies are restated at the year end exchange rate and the resultant translaion gains/losses, if any, arising 
thereon are credited/charged to the Statement of Proit and Loss.

  ii. In respect of transacions covered by forward exchange contracts, premium or discount, where there are 
underlying assets / liabiliies, is amorised as income or expense in the Statement of Proit and Loss over 
the life of the contract. Further, exchange diference on such contracts i.e. diference between the exchange 
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rate at the reporing/setlement date and the exchange rate on the date of incepion/the last reporing 
date, is recognised as income or expense for the period.

  iii. Outstanding forward contracts for irm commitment and highly probable forecast transacions are marked 
to market and the resuling loss, if any, is charged to the Statement of Proit and loss. Gain, if any, on such 
mark to market is not recognised as a prudent accouning policy.

 g. INVENTORIES 
  i. Raw materials, stores and spares and loose tools are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. 

However, items held for use in the producion of inventories are not writen down below cost, if the inished 
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is computed on 
weighted average basis.

  ii. Work-in-progress and inished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Finished goods 
and work-in-progress include cost of conversion, cess and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present locaion and condiion. Cost is computed on weighted average basis.

   Adequate provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving stocks, wherever necessary. 
 h. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash balances with banks and highly liquid and 

readily converible inancial instruments with original maturiies, at the date of purchase/investment, of three 
months or less. 

 i. BORROWING COSTS
  Borrowing costs that are directly atributable to the acquisiion or construcion of a qualifying asset is capitalised 

as part of the cost of such asset ill such ime the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is one 
that necessarily takes a substanial period of ime to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are 
charged to Statement of Proit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

 j. RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
  i. Deined Contribuion Plans 
   Contribuions to Provident Fund, Pension Scheme and Employees’ State Insurance Scheme are deined 

contribuion schemes and are charged to the Statement of Proit and Loss of the year. The Company makes 
speciied monthly contribuions towards employees provident fund to a trust administered by the Company 
as well as to provident fund plan operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The interest 
which is payable every year by the trust to the beneiciaries is noiied by the Government. The Company 
has an obligaion to make good the shorfall, if any, between the return from the investments of the trust 
and the noiied interest rate. 

  ii. Deined Beneit Plans 
   Gratuity liability is a deined beneit obligaion and is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuaion made 

at the end of each inancial year using projected unit credit method.
   Short term compensated absences are recognised on an undiscounted, accrual basis during the period 

when the employee renders service. Long-term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial 
valuaion.

   Actuarial gains/losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Proit and Loss.
 k. REVENUE RECOGNITION 
  i. Sales are recognised on transfer of signiicant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the buyer for 

a consideraion. Sales are net of sales tax, VAT and returns. Cess recovered from buyers separately is shown 
as reducion from sales, whereas cess on other sales which is not recovered is charged to the Statement of 
Proit and Loss. 

  ii. Interest income is accounted for on ime proporion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and 
rate applicable.

  iii. Dividend income is accounted for in the year in which the right to receive the same is established.
  iv. Revenue generated out of and related to Company’s normal operaions is considered as other operaing 

revenue.

 l. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 
  Grants from Government are recognised on compliance of condiions and on reasonable assurance of the same 

being received. Capital incenives are shown as deducion from the gross value of the speciic ixed assets. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
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Revenue grants related to export incenives are shown under the head of other operaing revenue and other 
grants are deducted from the related expense. 

 m. PROVISIONS FOR CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX 
  Provision for current tax is computed ater taking into consideraion beneits admissible under the provisions of 

the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resuling from iming diference between book proits and taxable proits 
is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substanively enacted as on the Balance Sheet 
date. Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward if there is a reasonable certainty that the asset will be 
realised in future.

 n. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS 
  Provisions involving substanial degree of esimaion in measurement are recognised when there is present 

obligaion as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an ouflow of resources. Coningent 
liabiliies are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Coningent assets are neither recognised nor 
disclosed in the inancial statements.

(` in Lakhs)

As at

31st March, 2015 

As at

31st March, 2014

2.   SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
70,00,000 (Previous year 70,00,000) Ordinary shares of ` 10/- each 700.00 700.00

Issued and Subscribed
45,11,250 (Previous year 45,11,250) Ordinary shares of ` 10/- each fully 
paid-up

451.13 451.13

7,000 (Previous year 7,000) Ordinary shares of ` 10/- each not fully 
paid-up and forfeited (amount originally paid-up) 0.35 0.35

451.48 451.48

No. of Shares No. of Shares
Reconciliaion of Number of Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  45,11,250  45,11,250 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  45,11,250  45,11,250 

25,74,081 shares (Previous year 25,74,081 shares) are held by the 

Holding Company, Harsh Investments Private Limited.

Terms / Rights atached to Ordinary shares
The Company has only one class of Ordinary shares having a par 
value of ` 10/- per share. Each holder of Ordinary shares is enitled 
to one vote per share and is enitled to dividend and to paricipate 
in surplus, if any, in the event of winding up.

As at                              

31st March, 2015

As at                              

31st March, 2014

Numbers               % Numbers %

List of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of total number of 
Shares issued by the Company :
Harsh Investments Private Limited (Holding Company) 25,74,081 57.06 25,74,081 57.06

Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 3,43,840 7.62 3,43,840 7.62

Mrs. Malai Kanoria 2,85,150 6.32 2,85,150 6.32
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As at 

31st March, 2015

As at 

31st March, 2014

3.   RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserve       

As per last Balance Sheet  0.24  0.24 

Capital Redempion Reserve    

As per last Balance Sheet  9.92  9.92 

Securiies Premium Account    

As per last Balance Sheet  1,242.50  1,242.50 

Revaluaion Reserve       

As per last Balance Sheet  6,752.99  6,786.78 

Less : Transfer to general reserve on account of depreciaion 
adjustment (Refer Note 30 )  (37.57)  -   

Less : Transfer to general reserve towards current year depreciaion  (17.47)  -   

Less : Transfer to general reserve on disposal of ixed assets  (0.26)  -   

Less : Transfer to Statement of Proit and Loss towards depreciaion  -    (29.95)

Less : Withdrawal on disposal of ixed assets  -    (3.84)

 6,697.69  6,752.99 

Special Economic Zone Re-investment Reserve Account
(for claiming deducion u/s 10AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961)
As per last Balance Sheet  544.94  400.00 

Add : Transfer from surplus out of proit for the year  350.00  200.00 

 894.94  600.00 

Less : Uilised during the year transfer to general reserve  192.81  55.06 

 702.13  544.94 

General Reserve       

As per last Balance Sheet  23,767.06  22,062.00 

Less : Depreciaion adjustment for change in useful lives (net of 
deferred tax ` 36.97) (Refer Note 30) 109.36  -   

 23,657.70  22,062.00 

Add:  Transfer from surplus  2,150.00  1,650.00 

Add : Transfer from special economic zone re-investment reserve account  192.81  55.06 

Add:  Transfer from revaluaion reserve  55.30  -   

 26,055.81  23,767.06 

Surplus
As per last Balance Sheet  500.02  461.33 

Add : Proit for the year  3,458.09  2,680.38 

 3,958.11  3,141.71 

Less : Appropriaions
  Proposed dividend  766.91  676.69 

  Tax on proposed dividend  156.13  115.00 

  Transfer to general reserve  2,150.00  1,650.00 

  Transfer to special economic zone re-investment reserve account  350.00  200.00 

 535.07  500.02 

 35,243.36  32,817.67

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(` in Lakhs)



CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2014 - 15

58

As at 

31st March, 2015

As at 

31st March, 2014

4.    LONG - TERM BORROWINGS   

Term loan (secured)   

From Export Import Bank of India  -    15.00 

 -    15.00 

Secured by hypothecaion of all movable ixed assets on irst charge basis and all current assets on second charge basis and 
by mortgage of all immovable properies both present and future by deposit of itle deeds on irst charge basis. 
Current maturiies of long-term loan amouning to ` 20.00 (Previous year ` 20.00) are disclosed under 'other current 
liabiliies' - (Refer Note 9).     
Outstanding amount in current maturiies is repayable in 4 equal quarterly instalments of ` 5.00 each from the reporing 
date, by January, 2016.

5.   DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)  

Deferred tax liabiliies :
    Related to ixed assets  232.77  269.19 

Deferred tax assets :
    Disallowances under the Income Tax Act, 1961  124.66  147.48 

Net deferred tax liabiliies  108.11  121.71 

6.   OTHER LONG - TERM LIABILITIES   

Trade payables  2.79  33.07 

Security deposits  7.57  7.80 

 10.36  40.87 

7.    SHORT - TERM BORROWINGS  

Working capital loan (secured)

From State Bank of India :
- Cash credit account  1,402.55  1,288.85 

 1,402.55  1,288.85 

Secured by hypothecaion of stocks, book debts and certain other assets on irst charge basis and by mortgage of all 
immovable properies both present and future by deposit of itle deeds, subject to prior charge created in favour of 
Export Import Bank of India.     
8.    TRADE PAYABLES   

 Trade payables  814.15  923.67 

 814.15  923.67 

9.   OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES  

 Current maturiies of long-term debt (Refer Note 4)  20.00  20.00 

 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  0.20  0.14 

 Unpaid dividends*  69.89  62.36 

 Fracional bonus share proceeds unclaimed  0.44  0.44 

 Advance from customers  21.75  0.60 

 Creditors for capital expenditure  -    5.85 

 Statutory dues  156.98  130.77 

 Security deposits  9.17  12.12 

 278.43  232.28 

* No amounts are due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Educaion and Protecion Fund. 
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As at 

31st March, 2015

As at 

31st March, 2014

10.    SHORT - TERM PROVISIONS  

 Employee beneits (Refer Note 46) 
       Unencashed leave  261.83  251.68 

       Gratuity  -    199.79 

 Others 

       Income and wealth tax (net of advance tax)  76.80  37.64 

       Proposed dividend  766.91  676.69 

       Tax on proposed dividend  156.13  115.00 

       Coningencies (Refer Note 49)  186.12  186.12 

 1,447.79  1,466.92 

11.    FIXED ASSETS

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION/AMORTISATION NET BLOCK

PARTICULARS Esimated 
Cost / Revalu-

aion and / or 
Book Value 

as at 31st

March, 2014

Addiions
during

the Year

Deducions/
Adjustments

during the

year

Esimated
Cost / Revalu-

aion and / or 
Book Value 

as at 31st

March, 2015

Upto

31st

March, 

2014

Adjusted

with

general

reserve

(Refer 
Note 30)

For

 the 

Year

Deduc-

ions

Upto

31st

March, 

2015

As at 

31st

March, 

2015

As at 

31st

March, 

2014

Tangible Assets
Freehold land  6,257.10  -    -    6,257.10  -    -    -    -    -    6,257.10  6,257.10 

Leasehold land  23.16  -    -    23.16  3.62  -    0.24  -    3.86  19.30  19.54 

Buildings  7,589.66  12.27  -    7,601.93  4,246.05  77.82  124.94  -    4,448.81  3,153.12  3,343.61 

Plant and 

equipment
10,635.65  290.80  24.20 10,902.25 9,149.79 11.40 367.45  13.62 9,515.02 1,387.23 1,485.86

Electrical 

installaions and 
equipment

1,412.68  1.16  21.91 1,391.93 1,186.48  39.77 58.77  19.03 1,265.99 125.94 226.20

Furniture and 

ixtures
338.35  0.38  -   338.73 249.22 3.67 28.47  -   281.36 57.37 89.13

Vehicles  153.61  24.32  36.25  141.68  63.56  -    28.51  24.97  67.10  74.58  90.05 

Oice equipment 301.89  15.09  6.81 310.17 248.69 13.67 27.37  6.57 283.16 27.01 53.20

 26,712.10  344.02  89.17  26,966.95  15,147.41  146.33  635.75  64.19  15,865.30  11,101.65  11,564.69 

Intangible Assets
Specialised 

sotware - others 
(Other than 

internally 

generated)

 153.34  12.74  -    166.08  43.44  -    12.51  -    55.95  110.13  109.90 

Total  26,865.44  356.76  89.17  27,133.03  15,190.85  146.33  648.26  64.19  15,921.25  11,211.78  11,674.59 

Previous Year  26,316.51  815.98  267.05  26,865.44  14,798.95  -    602.99  211.09  15,190.85  11,674.59 
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Face Value

per share/ 

unit (`)

 As at

31st March, 2015 

 As at

31st March, 2014 

 Shares / 

Units  Amount 

 Shares / 

Units Amount 

12. NON - CURRENT INVESTMENTS 
Long Term Investments - At cost

A. Non Trade Investments (Quoted)
(a) Investments in Equity Instruments - Fully paid-up

Infosys Limited 5  5,000  103.87  –     –   

Reliance Communicaions Limited 5  38,000  122.71  54,000  174.37 

Reliance Infrastructure Limited 10  10,000  155.16  18,000  279.29 

(b) Investments in Preference Share - Fully paid-up
Zee Entertainment Limited

6.00% Non-Converible Bonus Preference Shares 1  2,50,00,000  196.01  –     –   

(c) Investments in Debentures or Bonds - Fully paid-up
Housing and Urban Development Corporaion Limited

7.83% Tax Free Bonds, Series B (Opion II), 11-NOV-2026 1,00,000  200  200.00  200  200.00 

8.51% Tax Free Bonds, Tranche-I, Series 2A, 25-OCT-2028 1,000  20,000  200.00  20,000  200.00 

 India Infoline Finance Limited
Nity Linked Debentures 04-JUL-2016 1,00,000  160  203.36  –     –   

 India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited 
8.66% Tax Free Bonds, Tranche II, Series 3A, 22-JAN-2034 1,000  50,000  500.00  50,000  500.00 

8.55% Tax Free Bonds, Tranche III, Series 3A, 27-MAR-2034 1,000  30,000  300.00  30,000  300.00 

Indian Railway Finance Corporaion Limited
6.30% Tax Free Bonds, Series 68 A, 08-MAR-2017 1,00,000  100  100.00  100  100.00 

6.70% Tax Free Bonds, Series 68 B, 08-MAR-2020 1,00,000  300  302.80  300  302.80 

6.32% Tax Free Bonds, Series 73 A, 20-DEC-2017 1,00,000  200  200.00  200  200.00 

6.72% Tax Free Bonds, Series 73 B, 20-DEC-2020 1,00,000  200  200.00  200  200.00 

Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency Limited

8.55% Tax Free Bonds, Tranche I, Series IIIA, 13-MAR-2034 1,000  40,000  400.00  40,000  400.00 

L&T Finance Limited

9.95% Non-converible, Cumulaive debentures, Opion III, 
17-JAN-2017

1,000  –     –    56,212  562.12 

Naional Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development
Zero Coupon Bonds, Series BNB JAN 2019 20,000  5,575  559.99  11,000  1,104.94 

Zero Coupon Bonds, Series BNB FEB 2019 20,000  –     –    3,250  297.86 

Naional Highways Authority of India
8.30% Tax Free Bonds, Opion Tranche 1, Series 2 (II),  

25-JAN-2027
1,000  4,945  49.45  4,945  49.45 

8.50% Tax Free Bonds, Opion Tranche I, Series IIA, 05-FEB-2029 1,000  40,000  400.00  40,000  400.00 

Naional Housing Bank
8.76% Tax Free Bonds, Tranche I, Series 3A, 13-JAN-2034 5,000  6,166  315.00  6,166  315.00 

8.65% Tax Free Bonds, Tranche II, Series 3A, 24-MAR-2034 5,000  6,384  319.20  6,384  319.20 

Naional Thermal Power Corporaion Limited
8.66% Tax Free Bonds, Series 3A, 16-DEC-2033 1,000  31,665  316.65  31,665  316.65 

Power Finance Corporaion Limited
8.16% Tax Free Bonds, Series 80 B, 25-NOV-2026 1,00,000  400  400.00  400  400.00 

Rural Electriicaion Corporaion Limited
Zero Coupon Bonds, 15-DEC-2020 30,000  2,000  268.20  2,000  268.20 

8.46% Tax Free Bonds, Tranche I, Series 2A, 24-SEP-2028 1,000  50,000  500.00  50,000  500.00 

Carried Over ... 6,312.40 7,389.88
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Face Value

per share/ 

unit (`)

 As at

31st March, 2015 

 As at

31st March, 2014 

 Shares / 

Units  Amount 

 Shares / 

Units Amount 

Brought Forward ... 6,312.40 7,389.88

State Bank of India
9.50% Reset rate, Lower Tier II Bonds, (Series 2), 04-NOV-2025 10,000  –     –    420  42.00 

Trent Limited

 Zero Coupon Bonds, Series B, 30-JUN-2017 10,00,000  –     –    10  100.94 

(d) Investments in Mutual Funds
Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund

Birla Sun Life Fixed Term Plan - Series EN - Growth 10  20,00,000.000  200.00  20,00,000.000  200.00 

Birla Sun Life Fixed Term Plan - Series FE - Growth 10  –     –    *  20,00,000.000  200.00 

Goldman Sachs Mutual Fund

Goldman Sachs Nity Exchange Traded Scheme 10  72,000.000  500.15  28,000.000  153.46 

Goldman Sachs CPSE Exchange Traded Scheme 10 3,85,000.000  100.42  –     –   

HDFC Mutual Fund

HDFC FMP 1875D August 2013 (1) Series 27 - Direct - Growth 10  50,00,000.000  500.00  50,00,000.000  500.00 

ICICI Prudenial Mutual Fund
ICICI Prudenial FMP Series 63 - 3 years Plan H Cumulaive 10  –     –    *  20,00,000.000  200.00

ICICI Prudenial FMP Series 63 - 3 years Plan M Cumulaive 10  –     –    *  50,00,000.000  500.00

ICICI Prudenial FMP Series 69 - 1821 Days Plan I Regular Plan 
Cumulaive

10  50,00,000.000  500.00  50,00,000.000  500.00

L&T Mutual Fund

L&T FMP - VII (April 1124D A) [Previous year (March753D A)] 
- Growth

10  50,00,000.000  500.00  50,00,000.000  500.00 

Reliance Mutual Fund

Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - XXIII - Series 8 - Direct Growth 
Plan

10  50,00,000.000  500.00  50,00,000.000  500.00 

Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - XXIV - Series 2 - Growth Plan 10  50,00,000.000  500.00  50,00,000.000  500.00 

Reliance Capital Builder Fund II- Series A - Dividend Plan - 
Dividend Payout

10  30,00,000.000  300.00  –     –   

Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - XXVIII - Series 14 - Growth Plan 10  30,00,000.000  300.00  –     –   

UTI Mutual Fund

UTI - NIFTY Index Fund - Dividend Payout 10  –     –    #  21,28,795.984  350.00 

 B. Non Trade Investments (Unquoted)
(a) Investments in Equity Instruments - Fully paid-up

Cheviot Internaional Limited 10  20  –    20  –   

Woodlands Mulispeciality Hospital Limited 10  3,190  0.32  3,190  0.32 

(b) Investments in Mutual Funds
Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund

Birla Sun Life India Reforms Fund - Dividend - Regular Plan - 
Payout

10  52,38,459.369  700.00  –     –   

Birla Sun Life Frontline Equity Fund - Dividend - Regular Plan - 
Payout

10 9,71,188.087  300.00  –     –   

HDFC Mutual Fund

HDFC Equity Fund - Dividend - Payout 10  26,47,605.736  1,500.00  –    –   

HDFC Mid-Cap Opportuniies Fund - Dividend - Payout 10  30,40,334.753  800.00  –    –   

HDFC Gilt Fund Long Term - Growth 10 7,03,687.675  200.00  –    –   

Carried Over ... 13,713.29 11,636.60
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Face Value

per share/ 

unit (`)

 As at

31st March, 2015 

 As at

31st March, 2014 

 Shares / 

Units  Amount 

 Shares / 

Units Amount 

Brought Forward ... 13,713.29 11,636.60

ICICI Prudenial Mutual Fund
ICICI Prudenial Gilt Fund Investment Plan PF - Opion Regular 
Plan

10 7,28,175.665  200.00  21,59,081.095  500.00 

ICICI Prudenial Value Discovery Fund - Regular Plan - Dividend 
Payout

10 3,48,675.035  100.00  –     –   

IDFC Mutual Fund

IDFC Super Saver Income Fund - Short Term Plan - Growth - 
(Regular Plan)

10  –     –   9,06,792.501  200.00 

IDFC Super Saver Income Fund - Investment Plan - Growth - 
(Direct Plan)

10  –     –    17,68,021.443  500.00 

IDFC Arbitrage Plus Fund- Direct Plan -Dividend - Payout 10  41,39,685.008  500.00  –     –   

JM Financial Mutual Fund

JM Arbitrage Advantage Fund- Bonus opion - Principal & 
Bonus units

10  20,06,505.698  200.00  –     –   

J.P.Morgan Mutual Fund

JPMorgan India Acive Bond Fund - Insituional Plan - Growth 
Opion

10  49,67,808.600  500.00  49,67,808.600  500.00 

JPMorgan India Government Securiies Fund - Regular Plan - 
Growth Opion

10  44,33,803.316  500.00  –     –   

Reliance Mutual Fund

Reliance Equity Opportuniies Fund - Dividend Plan - Dividend 
Payout

10  20,33,713.943  700.00  –     –   

SBI Mutual Fund

SBI PSU Fund - Regular Plan- Dividend Payout 10 9,91,099.923  100.00  –     –   

UTI Mutual Fund

UTI - NIFTY Index Fund - Dividend Payout 10  21,28,795.984  350.00  #  –     –   

Total Non-Current Investments   16,863.29  13,336.60 
Aggregate Book value of Quoted Investments   10,212.97  11,636.28 

Market value of Quoted Investments   11,435.75  12,265.74 

Aggregate Book value of Unquoted Investments   6,650.32  1,700.32 

 * Current year igures have been shown in current investments (Refer Note 15) under the head of current maturiies  of long-term investments as these 
are maturing within 12 months from the reporing date.

 # Current year transfer from quoted to unquoted. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(` in Lakhs)

As at 

31st March, 2015

As at 

31st March, 2014

13.    LONG - TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES  

 (unsecured, considered good)  

 Capital advances  7.51  67.85

 Security deposits  34.12 34.26 

 Prepaid expenses  5.84  6.52 

 Advance to employees  13.51  11.71 

 60.98  120.34 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(` in Lakhs)

Face Value

per unit (`)

 As at

31st March, 2015 

 As at

31st March, 2014 

Units  Amount  Units Amount 

15. CURRENT INVESTMENTS

A. Current maturiies of Long-Term Investments (At cost)
Investments in Mutual Funds (Quoted)
Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund

Birla Sun Life Fixed Term Plan - Series ED - Growth 10   –  –  20,00,000.000  200.00 
Birla Sun Life Fixed Term Plan - Series GR (399 days) - 
Growth Direct

10 –  –  50,00,000.000  500.00 

Birla Sun Life Fixed Term Plan - Series FE - Growth 10  20,00,000.000  200.00  *  –  –

Deutsche Mutual Fund
DWS Fixed Maturity Plan - Series 4 - Growth Plan 10  – –  20,00,000.000  200.00 

HDFC Mutual Fund
HDFC FMP 36M October 2011 (1) Growth - Series-XIX 10  –     –  20,00,000.000  200.00 
HDFC FMP 36M November 2011 (1) Growth - Series-XIX 10  –     –  20,00,000.000  200.00 
HDFC FMP 24M April 2012 (1) Growth - Series-XX 10  –     –    20,00,000.000  200.00 

ICICI Prudenial Mutual Fund
ICICI Prudenial FMP Series 57 - 3 years Plan B Cumulaive 10  –     –    20,00,000.000  200.00 
ICICI Prudenial FMP Series 60 - 3 years Plan E Cumulaive 10  –     –    20,00,000.000  200.00 
ICICI Prudenial FMP Series 63 - 3 years Plan H Cumulaive 10  20,00,000.000  200.00  * –  –
ICICI Prudenial FMP Series 63 - 3 years Plan M Cumulaive 10  50,00,000.000  500.00  * –  –   

Reliance Mutual Fund
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - XXII - Series 33 - Growth Plan 10  –     –    50,00,000.000  500.00 

Total current maturiies of Long-Term Investments  900.00  2,400.00 

B. Other Current Investments (At lower of cost and fair value)
Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)
Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund

Birla Sun Life Cash Plus - Growth - Direct Plan 100 4,45,875.662  1,000.00  97,324.596  200.00 

BOI AXA Mutual Fund
BOI AXA Equity Fund - Regular Plan - Quarterly Dividend - 
Payout

10  11,67,542.323  130.06  –    –

ICICI Prudenial Mutual Fund
ICICI Prudenial Equity Arbitrage Fund- Regular Plan - 
Dividend Payout

10  14,46,842.989  199.19 –  –

Carried Over ... 1,329.25  200.00

As at 

31st March, 2015

As at 

31st March, 2014

14.   OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS   

 Fixed deposit accounts with bank (maturity over 12 months) *  300.60  199.16 

 Interest accrued on investments and ixed deposits  0.39  338.85 

 Indirect taxes refundable [net of provision ` 7.48 (Previous year `  105.16)]  25.83  26.46 

 Advance payment of tax and refund due  5.77  5.77

 332.59  570.24 

 * Under lien towards margin money and / or security against borrowings.



CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2014 - 15

64

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(` in Lakhs)

Face Value

per unit (`)

 As at

31st March, 2015 

 As at

31st March, 2014 

Units  Amount  Units Amount 

Brought Forward ... 1,329.25  200.00

JM Financial Mutual Fund
JM Balanced Fund - Dividend opion - Payout 10 7,88,948.411  104.57  –  –   

Sundaram Mutual Fund
Sundaram Growth Fund -Regular Plan - Dividend Payout 10  12,63,152.576  146.83  –  –   

Total Other Current Investments  1,580.65  200.00 

Total Current Investments  2,480.65  2,600.00 

Aggregate Book value of Quoted Investments  900.00  2,400.00 

Market value of Quoted Investments  1,144.33  2,825.65 

Aggregate Book value of Unquoted Investments  1,580.65  200.00 

 * Represents transfer from non-current investments (Refer Note 12) as these are maturing within 12 months from the reporing date.

As at 

31st March, 2015

As at 

31st March, 2014

16.   INVENTORIES   

 Raw materials  2,714.79  2,795.30 

 Work-in-progress   392.00  432.03 

 Finished goods [includes in transit ` 229.03 (Previous year ` Nil)]  1,180.52  1,349.75 

 Stores and spares  237.92  301.81 

 Loose tools  0.63  0.80 

 4,525.86  4,879.69 

17.   TRADE RECEIVABLES   

(unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)  

 Outstanding for a period exceeding six months  1.36  –   

 Other receivables :

    Considered good  2,462.40  2,704.94 

    Doubful  13.30  –   

    Less : Provision for doubful receivables  (13.30)  –   

 2,463.76  2,704.94 
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As at 

31st March, 2015

As at 

31st March, 2014

18.   CASH AND BANK BALANCES   

 Cash and cash equivalents 
 Cash on hand  7.25  8.08 

 Balances with banks 

      in current accounts  572.98  542.03 

 580.23  550.11 

 Other bank balances 

      Fixed deposit accounts *  100.89  202.64 

      Fracional bonus share account  0.44  0.44 

      Unpaid dividend accounts  69.89  62.36 

 171.22  265.44 

 751.45  815.55 

* Under lien ` 0.89 (Previous year ` 202.64) towards margin money and / or security against borrowings. 

 Fixed deposit accounts with maturity of more than 12 months amouning to ` 300.60 (Previous year ` 199.16) being 

non-current has been shown under the head other non-current assets (refer Note 14).

20.   OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 Interest accrued on investments and ixed deposits  95.65  100.54 

 Government grants receivable  218.53  210.50 

 Indirect taxes refundable    103.33  6.29 

 Other receivables *  29.42  4.28 

 446.93  321.61 

  * Includes primarily amount receivable against dividend, insurance claim, statutory dues.

19.    SHORT - TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES   

 (unsecured, considered good)  

 Balances with customs, excise etc.   –    0.04 

 Excise duty paid under protest *  110.73  110.73 

 Educaion and higher educaion cess on export sales paid under protest  –    2.27 

 Advance gratuity funding  (Refer Note 46)  312.63  –   

 Prepaid expenses  109.28  127.17 

 Others **  80.13  63.46 

 612.77  303.67 

* Amount paid "Under Protest" pursuant to the inal order dated 16th March, 2010 of the Tribunal against which an 
appeal is pending before the Hon'ble Supreme Court.

** Includes primarily advance against purchases, loans to employees.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(` in Lakhs)
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For the Year Ended

31st March, 2015

For the Year Ended

31st March, 2014

21.   REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of products (Jute goods)  26,496.62  27,639.78 

Other operaing revenues  349.43  364.42 

Revenue from operaions (gross)  26,846.05  28,004.20 

Less : Jute manufacturing cess  146.52  161.07 

Revenue from operaions (net)  26,699.53  27,843.13

22.   OTHER INCOME

Interest income

   On long-term investments  434.73  340.65 

   On ixed deposits  37.18  38.30 

   Others  1.97  19.96 

 473.88  398.91 

Dividend income 

   On long-term investments  324.25  3.90 

   On current investments  237.45 –

 561.70  3.90 

Net gain on sale of investments
   On long-term investments  951.72  144.40 

   On current investments  39.61  75.86 

 991.33  220.26 

Exchange diferences (net)  121.74  165.07 

Other non-operaing income  18.08  126.77 

 2,166.73  914.91

23.   COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Raw Jute  12,016.66  12,978.22 

Jute Yarn  1,288.15  757.88 

Others  2.17  35.75 

 13,306.98  13,771.85 

24.   CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Closing stock
Finished goods  1,180.52  1,349.75 

Work-in-progress  392.00  432.03 

 1,572.52  1,781.78 

Opening stock
Finished goods  1,349.75  780.68 

Work-in-progress  432.03  361.65 

 1,781.78  1,142.33 

 209.26  (639.45)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(` in Lakhs)
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For the year ended

 31st March, 2015

For the year ended

 31st March, 2014

25.   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES   

Salaries, wages, bonus etc.  4,091.83  4,866.65 

Contribuion to provident and other funds  513.62  482.21 

Staf welfare expenses  72.96  72.55 

 4,678.41  5,421.41 

26.   FINANCE COSTS   

Interest expenses  76.69  66.69 

Other borrowing costs  10.03  7.49 

 86.72  74.18 

27.   DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE 

Depreciaion and amorisaion (Refer Note 11)  648.26  602.99 

Less: Transferred from revaluaion reserve  -    29.95 

 648.26  573.04 

28.   OTHER EXPENSES   

Consumpion of stores and spare parts (Refer Note 36)  1,572.40  1,761.45 

Power and fuel  1,651.77  1,660.98 

Processing charges  197.80  297.61 

Rent  42.14  44.66 

Rates and taxes  20.02  21.11 

Repairs to buildings  145.30  199.67 

Repairs to machinery  108.89  98.41 

Repairs to others  327.43  103.14 

Insurance  72.59  70.17 

Donaion  –    301.00 

Expenditure towards CSR (Refer Note 37)  75.00  –   

Delivery charges  834.33  815.62 

Jute manufacturing cess  (Refer Note 38)  118.47  117.09 

Miscellaneous expenses  396.50  334.47 

Diminuion in value of current investments  219.35  –   

Provision for doubful receivables  13.30  –   

Payment to auditors

   Audit fees  3.93  3.93 

   For company law maters  –    0.17 

   For other services  3.01  3.01 

   For reimbursement of expenses  0.29  0.28 

 5,802.52  5,832.77 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
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For the year ended

 31st March, 2015

For the year ended

 31st March, 2014

29.   EARNINGS PER SHARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCOUNTING STANDARD (AS) - 20   

Net Proit ater tax as per Statement of Proit and Loss  3,458.09  2,680.38 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares  45,11,250  45,11,250 

Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share (in `)  76.65  59.42 

Face value per ordinary share (in `)  10.00  10.00 

30. Efecive 1st April 2014, depreciaion has been calculated in accordance with Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, 
considering the useful life of respecive assets as speciied therein, the efect of which is as follows :

 a) Depreciaion for the year is higher and the proit before tax is lower by ` 73.74;

 b) On account of transiional provisions of the said Schedule II, a sum of ̀  109.36 (net of deferred tax of ̀  36.97) has 

been recognised in the general reserve in respect of ixed assets whose balance useful life as on 1st April, 2014 
is Nil. Correspondingly, an amount of ` 37.57 has been transferred from revaluaion reserve to general reserve, 
on account of diference of writen down values between the subsituted cost and actual cost of the revalued 
assets.

31. Based on the valuaion report by a Chartered Engineer, an external valuer, certain ixed assets of the Company were 
revalued, on appraisal method as follows :

 a) Freehold land was revalued in the years ended 31st March, 1997, 31st March, 2003 and 31st March, 2008 with 

last revalued amount at ` 6,257.10;

 b) Buildings were revalued in the years ended 31st March, 1997 and 31st March, 2003 with last revalued amount 

at ` 4,165.09;

 c) Plant & equipment and electrical installaions were revalued in the years ended 31st March, 1998 and 31st 
March, 2003 with last revalued amount at ` 7,083.95 and ` 415.93 respecively.

32. Capital commitments not provided for at the date of this balance sheet are esimated at ` 10.30 (Previous year  

` 109.89) ater neing of advances paid.

33. Specialised sotware comprising of Oracle ERP Sotware, considered material, has a carrying amount of ` 81.19 

(Previous year ` 90.29), as on 31st March, 2015, to be amorised over the remaining period of eight years and eleven 
months. 

34. Based on the informaion available with the Company, the principal amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises, as 
deined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) is ` Nil (Previous 

year ` Nil). Further, no interest during the year has been paid or payable under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006.

35. Due to insolvency of a party, appearing under trade receivable, claim has been lodged with the oicial administrator, 
appointed by the court, for outstanding amount of Euro 100612.56 and for related expenses incurred. In view of buyer 
exposure policy taken by the Company, 80% of receivable is recoverable from Export Credit Guarantee Corporaion of 
India Limited, for which claim has also been lodged. Accordingly, provision for doubful receivables, has been made in 
respect of 20% of the outstanding amount as on 31st March, 2015.

36. Total stores and spare parts consumed during the year are ` 1,869.21 (Previous year ` 2,025.56) and include ` 296.81 

(Previous year ` 264.11) debited to relevant expense heads.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
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37. Expenditure towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) :

 a) As per secion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, gross amount required to be spent by the Company for  
expenditure towards CSR during the year is ` 74.64.

 b) Amount spent during the year is ` 75.00, which includes an amount of ` 65.00 contributed to Jan Priya Trust, a 

registered Trust, an associate of the Company.

38. Jute manufacturing cess, debited under other expenses in Note 28, includes (decrease)/increase in cess, on account 
of diference between the closing stock and opening stock of inished goods amouning to (` 3.24) (previous year ` 

5.69).

39. Derivaive instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure :

 a) The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposures in foreign currency. Forward exchange 
contracts for trade receivables outstanding as at balance sheet date is ` 72.97 (Previous year ` Nil);

 b) Forward cover for irm commitment in respect of future sales against export order as at balance sheet date is  
` 148.39 (Previous year ` Nil). The mark to market gain thereon amouning to ` 26.08 (Previous year ` Nil) has 

not been accounted for due to prudent accouning policy;

 c) Foreign currency exposure (net) at year end that are not hedged by derivaive instruments or otherwise is  
` 1,215.24 (Previous year ` 2,212.60).   

For the year ended

 31st March, 2015

For the year ended

 31st March, 2014

40.   VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIF BASIS   

Raw materials  1,955.48  2,371.27 

Components and spare parts  137.53  98.30 

Capital goods  31.06  318.28 

 2,124.07  2,787.85 

41.   EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY   

Travelling  22.80  15.71 

Delivery charges  81.78  136.39 

Others  21.55  13.76 

126.13  165.86 

42.   EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE   

F.O.B. value of exports  11,312.46  11,147.87 

F.O.B. value of machinery sold –  101.54 

 11,312.46  11,249.41 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
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For the year ended

 31st March, 2015

For the year ended

 31st March, 2014

Value % Value %
43.   VALUE OF RAW MATERIALS, SPARE PARTS AND COMPONENTS CONSUMED   

Raw materials
Imported  1,995.10 14.99  2,796.51 20.31

Indigenous  11,311.88 85.01  10,975.34 79.69

 13,306.98 100.00  13,771.85 100.00

Spare parts and components
Imported  139.06 7.44  101.83 5.03

Indigenous  1,730.15 92.56  1,923.73 94.97

 1,869.21 100.00  2,025.56 100.00

For the year ended

 31st March, 2015

For the year ended

 31st March, 2014

44.   PARTICULARS RELATING TO DIVIDEND PAID TO NON-RESIDENT SHAREHOLDERS   

Number of non-resident shareholders  90  99 

Number of shares held by them  62,543  64,032 

Dividend relaing to the year  2013-14  2012-13 

Amount of dividend (`)  9.38  9.60 

Amount remited in foreign currency (`)  –    –   

45. ACCOUNTING OF GOVERNMENT GRANTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS-12     

 Government grants received by the Company comprise of capital incenive of ` 10.31 (Previous year ` 39.89), export 
incenives of ` 303.03 (Previous year ` 307.03) and other revenue grants of ` 2.88 (Previous year ` 53.79).

46. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS DISCLOSURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS-15 (REVISED)

 i.  Deined Contribuion Plans 

  The Company has during the year recognised an expense of ` 513.62 (Previous year ` 482.21) towards deined 
contribuion plans.

  Out of the total contribuion, made for employees’ provident fund, a sum of ` 74.60 (Previous year ` 68.93) has 

been made to Cheviot Company Limited Employees’ Provident Fund while the remaining contribuion has been 
made to the provident fund plan operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Further, considering 
the past track and fair value of the plan assets of the Trust, the Company does not envisage any shorfall in liability 
towards the interest payable by the Trust at the noiied interest rate.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
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 ii. Deined Beneit Plans

For the year ended

 31st March, 2015

For the year ended

 31st March, 2014

The deined beneit plan in respect of gratuity, being funded by 
the Company, is as follows :

a. Change in deined beneit obligaion :
Present value of obligaion, at the beginning of the year  2,862.02  2,736.28 

Current service cost  202.28  195.01 

Interest cost  211.19  251.92 

Beneits paid  (519.19)  (313.62)

Actuarial gain  (338.61)  (7.57)

Present value of obligaion, at the end of the year  2,417.69  2,862.02 

b. Change in fair value of plan assets :
Plan assets at the beginning of the year  2,662.23  2,379.29 

Expected return on plan assets  215.70  226.87 

Contribuions by the employer  199.79  426.99 

Actuarial gain/(loss)  171.79  (57.30)

Beneits paid  (519.19)  (313.62)

Plan assets at the end of the year  2,730.32  2,662.23 

c. Amount recognised in Balance Sheet :

Present value of deined beneit obligaion  2,417.69  2,862.02 

Fair value of plan assets  2,730.32  2,662.23 

Net asset/(liability) recognised in Balance Sheet  312.63  (199.79)

d. Expenses recognised in the Statement of Proit and Loss :
Current service cost  202.28  195.01 

Interest cost  211.19  251.92 

Expected return on plan assets  (215.70)  (226.87)

Net actuarial (gain)/loss  (510.40)  49.73 

Total expenses  (312.63)  269.79 

e. Consituion of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets :
Government of India / Government of India guaranteed 
securiies and units of Gilt mutual funds 21.30% 22.41%
State Government / State Government guaranteed securiies 35.03% 34.33%
Bonds 37.62% 35.19%
Units of money market mutual fund 0.45% 0.78%
Units of equity linked scheme of mutual fund 1.18% 3.54%
Cash at bank and receivables (net) 4.42% 3.75%
Total 100.00% 100.00%
There is no amount included in the fair value of plan assets for :
i.   Company's own inancial instrument;
ii.  Any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the Company.
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f. Experience Adjustments :
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

1. Deined beneit obligaion  2,417.69  2,862.02  2,736.28  2,352.72  2,227.48 

2. Plan assets  2,730.32  2,662.23  2,379.29  2,000.83  1,730.42 

3. Surplus/(Deicit)  312.63  (199.79)  (356.99)  (351.89)  (497.06)

4. Experience adjustments (gain)/loss on plan liabiliies  46.21  (66.55)  420.66  (4.46)  494.08 

5. Experience adjustments gain/(loss) on plan assets  171.79  (57.30)  (5.33)  (25.41)  (31.41)

g. Principal actuarial assumpions at the Balance Sheet date :

 For the year ended

 31st March, 2015

For the year ended

 31st March, 2014

Discount rate 8.00% 8.25%
Esimated rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 9.00%
Salary escalaion 9.00% 9.00%

  Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the average long-term rate of return expected on investments of 
the funds during the esimated term of the obligaions.

  The Company is expected to contribute ` Nil to the gratuity trust fund during the year ending 31st March, 2016.
  The esimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuaion, take account of inlaion, seniority, 

promoion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment. 
 h. General descripion of the deined plans :     
  i Gratuity Plan     

   This is a funded deined beneit plan for qualifying employees. The Company makes contribuions to the Cheviot 
Company Limited Employees' Gratuity Trust Fund. Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company 
on superannuaion, death, permanent disablement and on resignaion/terminaion of employment in terms of 
the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the Company’s rule, whichever is more beneicial to the 
employee. 

  ii Leave Plan     

   Eligible employees can carry forward and encash leave on superannuaion, death, permanent disablement and 
on resignaion/terminaion of employment in accordance with the Company’s scheme subject to a maximum 
of 45 days depending on the grade/category of employee.

47. SEGMENT REPORTING IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS - 17     
The Company operates through two business segments namely, a) Jute goods and b) Capive power generaion. 
However, Capive power generaion is not a reportable segment in terms of the criteria laid down in paragraph 
27 of the AS-17, as the revenue/results/assets of this segment are not more than the threshold limit of 10% of 
the total segment revenue/results/assets and as such the disclosure requirements as required by AS-17 are not 
applicable in respect of business segment. However, the geographical segments considered for disclosure are as  
under : 

Within India Outside India Total

31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

Sales (gross)  14,523.15 15,839.59  11,973.47  11,800.19 26,496.62 27,639.78

Carrying amount of segment assets  39,756.23 37,358.45 –  –   39,756.23 37,358.45

Capital expenditure  262.54 825.84 –  –   262.54 825.84
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48. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS - 18 
 A. Relaionships 
  1 Controlling Group
   i. Holding Company : 
    Harsh Investments Private Limited (HIPL)
   ii. Others :
    a Abhyadoot Finance and Investments Private Limited (AFIPL)
    b Bright and Shine Micro Products Private Limited (BSMPPL) 
    c Cheviot Agro Industries Private Limited (CAIPL) 
    d Cheviot Internaional Limited (CIL) 
    e Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria (Mr. H.V. Kanoria) 
    f Mrs. Malai Kanoria (Wife of Mr. H.V. Kanoria) 
    g Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria (Son of Mr. H.V. Kanoria)
  2. Associates 
   i. Jan Priya Trust  ii.    Shashvat Foundaion  
  3. Key Management Personnel 
   i. Mr. H. V. Kanoria ii.    Mr. N. K. Kejriwal iii. Mr. U. Kanoria iv. Mr. D. Mazumdar 
   v. Mr. D. K. Mohta vi.   Mr. M. K. Patni vii. Mr. A. Banerjee
  4. Relaive of Key Management Personnel 
   i. Mrs. Malai Kanoria (Wife of Mr. H.V. Kanoria) ii. Mrs. Bimla Kejriwal (Wife of Mr. N.K. Kejriwal)
 B.  The following transacions were carried out with the related paries in the ordinary course of business :

Transacions/
Nature of Relaionship

For the year ended 31st March, 2015 For the year ended 31st March, 2014

Controlling
Group Associates

Key
Management

Personnel

Relaive 
of Key 

Management 
Personnel Total

Controlling
Group Associates

Key
Management

Personnel

Relaive 
of Key 

Management 
Personnel

Total

Sale of goods  –  –  –  –  –    –    1.48  –    –  1.48 
Jan Priya Trust  –    –  –    –  –    –   1.48  –    –  1.48 

Sale of ixed assets  –  –  –  –  –    –    –  1.80  –  1.80 
Mr. M.K. Patni  –    –  –    –  –    –    –  1.80  –  1.80 
Rendering of services  4.14  –  –    –  4.14  4.06  –  –    –  4.06 
CIL  2.64  –  –    –  2.64  2.64  –  –    –  2.64 

CAIPL  1.20  –  –    –  1.20  1.20  –  –    –  1.20 

Others  0.30  –  –    –  0.30  0.22  –  –    –  0.22 

Receiving of services  –  – 337.21  4.60 341.81  –  – 342.25  3.00 345.25
Mr. H.V. Kanoria  –  –  184.65  –   184.65  –  – 194.32  –   194.32

Mr. N.K. Kejriwal  –  –  40.07  –   40.07  –  – 62.74  –   62.74

Mr. D. Mazumdar  –  –  34.45  – 34.45  –  – 32.55  –   32.55

Others  –  – 78.04  4.60 82.64  –  – 52.64  3.00 55.64

Deposit received  –  –  0.36  –  0.36  –  –  0.16  –  0.16 
Mr. M.K. Patni  –  –  –    –   –    –  –  0.16  –   0.16 

Mr. A. Banerjee  –  –  0.36  –   0.36  –  –  –    –   –   

Dividend paid  507.50  –  0.05  0.04  507.59  507.50  –  0.05  0.04  507.59 
HIPL  386.11  –  –    –    386.11  386.11  –  –    –    386.11 

Mr. H.V. Kanoria  51.58  –   –   –   51.58  51.58  –   –   –   51.58 

Others  69.81  –  0.05  0.04  69.90  69.81  –  0.05  0.04  69.90 

Donaion paid  –  –  –    –  –    – 300.00  –    –  300.00 
Shashvat Foundaion  –  –  –    –  –    –  75.00  –    –  75.00 

Jan Priya Trust  –  –    –    –  –    –  225.00  –    –  225.00 
Expenditure towards CSR  –   65.00  –   –   65.00  –   –   –   –   –  
Jan Priya Trust  –   65.00  –    –   65.00  –   –   –   –   –  

Outstanding receivable  –    –  –    –  –    1.18  –  –    – 1.18
CIL  –    –  –    –  –    1.00  –  –    – 1.00

CAIPL  –    –  –    –  –    0.18  –  –    – 0.18

Outstanding deposit  –  – 1.12  – 1.12  –  –  –  –  –

Mr. A. Banerjee  –  – 1.12  – 1.12  –  –  –  –  –

There being no doubful debts, no provision has been made and no amount has been writen of or writen back during the year in respect of related party 
transacions. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
(` in Lakhs)
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49. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS - 29
 a. In accordance with AS - 29 – “Provisions, Coningent Liabiliies and Coningent Assets”, the Company as a prudent 

measure, has made following provisions in the books :

For the year ended

 31st March, 2015

For the year ended

 31st March, 2014

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES Indirect taxes Indirect taxes
Balance at the beginning of the year  186.12  271.42 

Addiional provision during the year  –    –   

Provision used during the year  –    0.09 

Provision reversed during the year  –    85.21 

Balance at the end of the year  186.12  186.12 

  Provision for coningencies represents esimates made mainly for probable claims arising out of disputes pending 
with the authoriies under various statutes. The probability and iming of the ouflow with regard to these maters 
depend on the ulimate setlement / conclusion with the relevant authoriies.

 b. Coningent liabiliies not provided for :     
  i. Sales Tax in dispute - ` 16.49 (Previous year ` 19.59) under appeal and not acknowledged as debt.

  ii. Income Tax in dispute - ` 236.27 (Previous year ` 186.98) under appeal and not acknowledged as debt.

  iii. Wealth Tax in dispute - ` 222.75 (Previous year ` Nil) under appeal and not acknowledged as debt.

  iv. Excise Duty in dispute - ` 2,475.00 (Previous year ` Nil) against show cause cum demand noice, not 
acknowledged as debt, for which appropriate reply has been furnished and mater not yet adjudicated.

  v. Service Tax in dispute - ` 1.44 (Previous year ` Nil)  against show cause noice not acknowledged as debt, for 
which appropriate reply has been furnished and mater not yet adjudicated.

50. The Company is maintaining separate books of account for its diferent undertakings viz, DTA and Capive Power Plant 
at Budge Budge and EOU at Falta, SEZ.

51. The Board of directors recommend payment of dividend of ̀  17/- (Previous year ̀  15/-) per Ordinary share of the face 
value of ` 10/- each for the year ended 31st March, 2015. 

52. The previous year's igures have been re-grouped/re-classiied to conform to the current year's classiicaion.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board 
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 

Chairman and Managing Director,  

Chief Execuive Oicer 
DIN : 00060259 CA Madhup Kumar Patni

Chief Financial Oicer 

CS Aditya Banerjee 
Company Secretary

As per our report atached
For Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants 
Registraion No. : 302023E
CA P. K. Jain
Partner 
Membership No. 52018
Dated : 19th day of May, 2015

 Nawal Kishore Kejriwal  Navin Nayar
 Wholeime Director  Director
 DIN : 00060314  DIN : 00136057

(` in Lakhs)
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